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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 43Annual General Meeting of the members of KANAK PROJECTS
LIMITED will be held at Kanak Building, 41 Chowringhee Road, Kolkata - 700071 on Thursday,

29thSeptember, 2022 at 11:00 A.M to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2022 (including Audited
Consolidated Financial Statement) and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date

and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Nikhil Prakash (DIN: 00434328) who retires by rotation at
this Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1)(zc), 23(4) and other applicable
Regulations, if any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended from time to time, Section
2(76) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Rules framed
thereunder [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force]
and other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company’s Policy on Related Party
Transactions as well as subject to such approval(s), consent(s) and/or permission(s), as may be required
and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, consent of the Members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’,
which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee or any other Committee constituted /
empowered / to be constituted by the Board from time to time to exercise its powers conferred by this
Resolution) for entering into and/or proposed to be entered into and/ or continuing with Transaction(s) /
Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions
taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise) between the Company and each of the party(ies)
namely M/s Purbanchal Concast Private Limited, M/s DLX Limited, M/s Arihant Solvex Private Limited,
M/s Amrita Media Private Limited, M/s Barsana Farms Private Limited, Mr. Anshuman Prakash, Mr.
Nikhil Prakash and Mr. Sidhant Prakash, being Related Party (ies) within the meaning of Regulation
2(1)(zb) of the SEBI LODR, during the financial year ending on March 31, 2022 and upto the date of the
44" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2023, with respect to Transaction(s) /
Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) as mentioned in detail in the Explanatory Statement annexed
herewith whether by way of fresh or renewal(s) or extension(s) or any modification(s) of earlier
Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) or otherwise including payment of interest or
levy of charges for any services provided by the Company, from time to time on such terms and
conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and the aforementioned Related Parties of
the Company, notwithstanding the fact that the maximum balance at any day during the financial year
2022-23 and for the next financial year and upto the date of the 44™ Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in the year 2023, may exceed or have exceeded Rs. 1000 crores or 10 per cent of the
annual consolidated turnover of the Company for the relevant financial year, whichever is lower, as
prescribed under SEBI LODR or any other materiality threshold, as may be applicable from time to time,
for each such Party, provided however, that the said Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) /
Agreement(s) shall be carried out on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company.




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Members of the Company do hereby approve and accord approval
to the Board (hereinafter referred to as ““ the Board” which terms shall include any committee thereof), to
sign and execute all such documents, deeds and writings, including filing the said documents, etc., and
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and take necessary steps as the Board may in its absolute
discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution and to settle any
question that may arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the Members, and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval
thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Members of the Company, do hereby also accord approval to the
Board to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Director(s)/ Officer(s) of the
Company, in accordance with applicable laws, to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and also to
execute such documents, writings, etc., as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the
aforesaid resolutions.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred
to or contemplated in this Resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
Confirmed in all respect.”

Date: 04.09.2022
Place:Kolkata By Order of theBoard
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Registered Office:

41, Chowringhee Road

Kolkata—700071

Ph:91-33-2288-3970/3972 Anshuman Prakash
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The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the Company shall remain
closed from 23"September, 2022 to 29"September, 2022 (both daysinclusive).

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIM/HER. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The Proxy in order to be effective, must be duly
completed, signed, stamped and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. A person can act as proxy
on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) innumber and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is
proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a
proxy for any othermember.

. Corporate Members are requested to send to the Company, a duly certified copy of the
Board Resolution/Power of Attorney, authorizing their representatives to attend and vote
at theAnnual GeneralMeeting.

. Members holding shares in physical form may obtain the Nomination forms from the
Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in electronic
form may obtain the Nomination forms from their respective depositoryparticipants.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address and also
particulars of their Bank Accounts viz., Name of the bank, branch, complete address of
the bank and bank account number for printing the same on the Dividend Warrants to
avoid fraudulent encashment:

e To their Depository Participants (DP) in respect of their DematAccount(s);and

e To the Company at its registered office or to the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents
of the Company in respect of shares held in physicalform.

6. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding

to dematerialized form to eliminate all risk associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or Niche Technologies Private
Limited for this purpose.

. Members/ Proxies are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed as per the
specimen signature recorded with the Company, for admission to the meetinghall.

Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or
jointaccounts in the same order or names are requested to send the share certificates to
the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for consolidation into a singlefolio.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Members whose name appears as the
first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be
entitled to vote.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address to the Depository
Participants in respect of electronic share accounts and to the Registrars and Transfer
Agents, NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED, 3A, Auckland Place 7th Floor,
Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700017 in respect of physical shareaccounts.

In case the mailing address mentioned in the Annual Report is without the Pin Code,
members are requested to inform their Pin Codeimmediately.

Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to themeeting.

Pursuant to sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant
Rules made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications
through electronic mode to those members who have registered their e-mail address either
with the Company or with the Depository. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail
address withthe Company or their Depository are requested to doso.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses
arerequestedtoregisterthesamewithNICHETECHNOLOGIESPRIVATELIMITEDDepositorie
s.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules of the Act, and
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), the Company is providing
thefacilitytoMemberstoexercisetheirrightstovotebyelectronicmeans. TheCompanyhasengagedthe Services
of CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED for providing e-voting facilities. The e-
voting rights of the Members/beneficial owners shall be reckoned in proportion to ordinary shares
held by them in the Company as on 22.09.2022 (Cut-off date fixed for this purpose). The e- voting
period will commence at 09:00 a.m. on 26™ September, 2022, and will end at 5:00 p.m.
on28™MSeptember, 2022. The Company has appointed CS Shristi Garg, Practicing Company Secretary, to
act as Scrutinizer,for conducting the scrutiny of the votes cast. Detailed instructions for availing e-voting
facility are being sent separately as a part of this Notice.

AcopyofthisNoticehasbeenplacedonthewebsiteoftheCompanyandthewebsiteof CDSL.

Date: 04.09.2022
Place: Kolkata

By Order of the Board

CIN:L67020WB1979PLC031867 Kanak Projects Limited
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Ph:91-33-2288-3970/3972 Anshuman Prakash
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Voting through Electronic means:

1)

In)

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as
amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendments
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), the Company is pleased to provide members facility to execute
their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through
e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an
electronic voting system for a place other than venue of the AGM (‘remotee-
voting”)willbeprovidedbyCentralDepositoryServicesIndiaLimitedCDSL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM
and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-
voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. The
members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their voteagain.

IIl) Theprocessandmannerforremotee-votingareasunder:

(i)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 26t September, 2022 (09.00
a.m. IST) and ends on Wednesday, 28"September, 2022 (5.00 p.m. IST).
During this period, members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Tuesday,
22ndSeptember 2022, may cast their vote by remote e- voting. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on
a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change
itsubsequently.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting
websitewww.evotingindia.comduring the votingperiod.

Click on “Shareholders’tab.

Now Enter your UserlD:

a. For CDSL : 16 digits beneficiaryID,

b. For NSDL : 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits ClientID,

c. MembersholdingsharesinPhysicalFormshouldenterFolioNumberregisteredwit
h the Company, excluding the specialcharacters.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click onLogin.
If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your
existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps givenbelow.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enteryour10digitalpha-numericPANissuedbylncomeTaxDepartment(Applicablefor both

Demat shareholders as well as physicalshareholders)

. MemberswhohavenotupdatedtheirPANwiththeCompany/Depository

Participant are requested to use the two letters of their names and the 8 digit

of the sequence number in the PANField.

. Incasethesequencenumberislessthan8digitsentertheapplicablenum
berofQ’s
beforethenumberafterthefirsttwocharactersofthenameinCAPITALletter
s.Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then
enter RA0O0000001 in the PANField.




DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with the depository or
in thecompany records for your folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Bank EntertheBankAccountNumberasrecordedinyourdemataccountwiththedepository

Account or in the company records for yourfolio.

Number e PleaseentertheDOBorBankAccountNumberin ordertoLogin.

(DBD) e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then

please enterthemember-
id/folionumberintheBankAccountNumberdetailsfieldasmentioned in above
instruction (iv).

(viii)

(ix)

(xiii)

Afterenteringthesedetailsappropriately,clickon“SUBMIT"tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, members holding shares in Demat form will now
reach ‘Password Creation’” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they
areeligibletovote,providedthatcompanyoptsfore-votingthroughCDSL platform.lt
is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person
and take utmost care to keep your passwordconfidential.

ForMembersholdingsharesinphysicalform,thedetailscanbeusedonlyfore-voting
on the resolutions contained in thisNotice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. KANAK PROJECTS
LIMITED on which you choose tovote.

Onthevotingpage,youwillsee“RESOLUTIONDESCRIPTION”andagainstthesam
ethe option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES
impliesthatyouassenttotheResolutionandoptionNOimpliesthatyoudissenttothe
Resolution.

Click on the “‘RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire
Resolutiondetails.




20)

21)

22)

23)

24)

(xiv)  After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.
A confirmationboxwillbedisplayed.Ifyouwishtoconfirmyourvote,clickon“OK”,else
tochangeyourvote,clickon“CANCEL”andaccordinglymodifyyourvote.

(xv)  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify yourvote.

(xvi)  Youcanalsotakeoutprintofthevotingdonebyyoubyclickingon“Clickheretoprint”
option on the Votingpage.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by thesystem.

(xviii) Notes for Institutional Shareholders&Custodians:

¢ Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, and NRI etc.) &
Custodians are required to log on to htips://www.evotingindia.com and
register themselves asCorporate.

o AscannedcopyoftheRegistrationFormbearingthestamp&signedoftheentity
should be emailed tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details they have to create compliance user
should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to voteon.

e The list of accounts should be mailed tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approvaloftheaccountstheywouldbeabletocasttheirvote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA)
whichthey have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify thesame.

(xix) Incaseyouhaveanyqueriesorissuesregardinge-
voting,youmayrefertheFrequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write anemail
tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of duly authorized signatory (ies) who are
authorizedtovotethroughe-mailatshristigarg07 @gmail.com withacopymarkedto
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or before 26"September, 2022, up to 11.00 A.M. without
which the vote shall not be treated as valid.

The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity
capitaloftheCompanyasonthecut-offdateof Thursday,22"¢September,2022.

The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of
Wednesday, Thursday,22"¢ September, 2022.Thefacilityofe-
votingwouldbeprovidedonceforeveryfolio/ client id, irrespective of the number of jointholders.

Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic
means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Thursday,22"¢ September, 2022, and not casting
theirvoteelectronically,mayonlycasttheirvoteatthe AnnualGeneralMeeting.

Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip, proxy form along with the process instructions
and the manner of conducting e-voting is being sent electronically to all the members whosee-
mail IDs are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s). For members who
request for a hard copy and those who have not registered their email address, physical copies
of the same are being sent through the permittedmode.




25) Investors who became members of the Company subsequently to the dispatch of the Notice /
Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday,22" September, 2022, are
requestedtosendthewritten/emailcommunicationtotheCompanyat
dlapkanak@gmail.com by mentioning their Folio No./DP ID and Client ID to obtain the
Login-ID and Password for e- voting.

26) Mrs. ShristiGarg, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. F11577 and Certificate of
Practice No. 17447), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting
processandvotingattheAGMinafairandtransparentmanner.

27) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is
to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those
members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-
votingfacility.

28) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the
votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not
later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the
total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in
writing,whoshallcountersignthesameanddeclaretheresultofthevotingforthwith.

29) TheResultsdeclaredalongwiththeScrutinizer’sReportshallbeplacedontheCompany’s
websiteww.kanakprojectsltd.com and on the website of CDSL vizww.cdslindia.com. The
samewillbecommunicatedtothestockexchange.TheCalcuttaStockExchangeLtd,wherethe shares
of the Company arelisted.

30) Since e-voting facility (including Ballot Forms) is provided to the Members pursuant to the
provisionsofSection108oftheCompaniesAct,2013,readwithCompanies(Managementand
Administration)Rules,2014,votingbyshowofhandsarenotallowed.

Kolkata
04.09.2022 By Order of theBoard
CIN:L67020WB1979PLC031867 Kanak Projects Limited

Registered Office:
41, Chowringhee Road
Kolkata—700071

Ph:91-33-2288-3970/3972 Anshuman Prakash
Fax:91-33-2243-5462/2288-3581 Director
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e:www.kanakprojectsltd.com




Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Item no. 3

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties which are on an
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obligation of obtaining prior approval of
shareholders. However, in terms of the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘'SEBI LODR’) such transactions, if material, require prior approval of shareholders by way
of an ordinary resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business.

As per Regulation 2(1) read with the proviso to Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI LODR, effective April 1, 2022, transactions
involving transfer of resources, services or obligations between a listed entity and any person or entity forming a part of the
promoter or promoter group of the listed entity will be considered as ‘related party transactions’ (‘RPT’), and as ‘material
related party transactions’, if the transaction to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during
a financial year, exceeds Rs. 1000 crore or 10 per cent. of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last
audited financial statements of the listed entity, whichever is lower.

The Company, during the ordinary course of its non-banking financial services, enter into and/or proposed to be entered into
and/ or continuing with Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) (in any form and by whatever name
called), whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise
between the Company and each of the party(ies), whether by way of fresh or renewal(s) or extension(s) or any
modification(s) of earlier Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) /Agreement(s) or otherwise including the payment of
interest or levy of charges for any services provided by the Company, from time to time on such terms and conditions as may
be mutually agreed between the Company and its related parties (‘RPs’). Therefore, it is required to seek the prior approval
of the shareholders of the Company for the aforesaid transactions.

Further, SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 8, 2022, clarified that the Member’s
approval of omnibus RPTs approved in an Annual General Meeting (AGM) shall be valid during the financial year ending on
March 31, 2023 and upto the date of the next AGM to be held on year 2023 for a period not exceeding fifteen months. Hence,
it is also proposed to seek approval of the Members for the below mentioned transactions at this AGM in order to have the
resolution valid till next AGM.

In view of the above, approval of the Members is sought w.r.t. Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s)
(in any form and by whatever name called), enter into and/or proposed to be entered into and/ or continuing with (whether by
way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise) between the
Company and each of the party (ies), including the information required to be disclosed in the Explanatory Statement
pursuant to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021, are as follows:

SL DESCRIPTION DETAILS

NO.
1 Details of Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit Committee:-
a Name of the Related party Key Management Personnel:-

(ies) relationship

Sudhir Prakash, Managing Director
Anshuman Prakash, Director
Neelima Jain, Director
Nikhil Prakash, Director
¢ Sidhant Prakash, Director
Entities significantly influenced by Promoter(s)/ Key
Managerial Personnel (s) and their relatives:
e DLXLtd
Amrita Media Private Limited
R.K. Commercial Ltd
Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Private Ltd
Barsana Farms
Arihant Solvex Private Ltd
Purbanchal Concast Private Ltd
Associate Company:-
e Laojan Tea Company Private Ltd

b Whether the transaction(s) is Yes
in ordinary course of
business
c Whether the transaction(s) is Yes
at Arm’s Length basis
d Nature of concern or interest Financial

of the related party
(financial/otherwise)




e Type, material terms, The company during its ordinary courses of business inter alia

monetary value and enter into and/or proposed to be entered into and/ or continuing
particulars of the with following Related Party Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/
proposed RPTs Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) whether by way of an individual

transaction or transactions taken together or a series of
transactions or otherwise between the Company and each of the
related party(ies) whether by way of fresh or renewal(s)

or extension(s) or any modification(s) of earlierTransaction(s) /
Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) or otherwise :-

(1 Transfer of Resources (Unsecured Loan/

Investments)

[1 Rendering and receipt of any service or

resources

[ Interest received and paid on outstanding

balances and

[ and other transactions for business purpose

from/to Related Parties.

f Value and Tenure of For an aggregate value not exceeding Rs. 15 crore with each of
Transaction(s) the Related Parties during financial year 2022-23 upto the date of
the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in
the year 2023.
g Percentage of annual Approximately 25%

consolidated turnover
considering FY 2021-22

as the immediately preceding
financial year that
represented by the value of
the each RPTs

2 Justification for the These transactions are done in furtherance of the ordinary
transaction(s) course of business.

3 Details of transaction(s) relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments
made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary:-

a details of the source of funds N.A.

in connection with the
proposed transaction(s)
b where any financial N.A.
indebtedness is incurred to
make or give loans,
inter-corporate deposits,
advances or investments:-
— nature of indebtedness;

- cost of funds; and

- tenure
c applicable terms, including Interest Rate :- 8%
covenants, tenure, interest Tenure:- Upto 1 Year
rate and repayment schedule, | Repayment Schedule:- On Maturity
whether secured or Security :- Unsecured

unsecured; if secured,
the nature of security

4 Any other information that All important information forms part of the statement setting out
may be relevant material facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 forming part of this Notice

The maximum balance at any day, during FY 2022-23 and for the next financial year (until the holding of 44" Annual General
Meeting of the Company), between the Bank on one side and promoter entities, as mentioned above, individually on the other side,
may exceed the threshold of ‘material related party transactions’ under the SEBI LODR, i.e., 31,000 crore or 10 per cent. Of the
annual consolidated turnover of the Bank as per the last audited financial statements of the Bank, whichever is lower, for each such
Party. All these transactions will be executed on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Bank. Based on
the information on the transactions as provided above, the Audit Committee has approved entering into the said transactions and the
Board of the Company has recommended for the approval of the Members, the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of this Notice, by way
of an ordinary resolution. The Members may please note that in terms of provisions of the SEBI LODR, no related party shall vote to
approve the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 3 of this Notice. Except Mr. Sudhir Prakash, Anshuman Prakash and Nikhil Prakash
and Sidhant Prakash none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution. Your Board of Directors, therefore, recommends the passing of the
ordinary resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice.



Kanak Projects Limited
Regd.Office:41,ChowringheeRoad,KanakBuilding,Kolkata70
0071 Tel: 2288 3970
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439AnnualGeneralMeetingattheregisteredofficeofthecompanyat41ChowringheeRoad,
Kanak Building, Kolkata 700071

FolioNo. DP IDNo.

Client IdNo.

Name of theMember

Signature

NameoftheProxyholder

Signature

| certify that | am registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 43'9Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, 29" September,
2022.

Member’s / Proxy’s Signature

Note: Shareholders / Proxy holders desiring to attend the meeting should bring their copy of
the Annual Report as the same will not be distributed again at the meeting.




Kanak Projects Limited
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867
Regd.Office:41,ChowringheeRoad,KanakBuilding,Kolkata70
0071 Tel: 2288 3970
Email:dlapkanak@gmail.comWebsite:
www.kanakprojectsltd.com

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867
Name of the company: Kanak Projects Limited

Registered office: 41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building, Kolkata 700 071

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:

E -mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being themember(s)of............. shares of the above named company, herebyappoint

1.Name: ....cccoooceeeeeer
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature.............. , or failinghim

2.Name: .....ccccoevvveennnn
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature.............. , or failinghim

3. Name: ....ccccoeviiienn
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature.............. , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 43
Annual General Meeting(AGM)of the Company to be held onThursday,29" September,2022
a t11:00A.M.at 41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building, Kolkata - 700071 (W.B) and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:




1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 (including
AuditedConsolidatedFinancialStatement)andtheStatementofProfitandLossfortheyear
endedonthatdateandtheReportsoftheBoardofDirectorsandAuditorsthereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Nikhil Prakash (DIN: 00434328) who retires by
rotationatthismeetingandbeingeligible,offersherselfforre-appointment.

Signed this........... day of.2022

IAffix |

Signature of shareholder .................ooo. Signature of Proxy holder(s)............c..coooiinen.

Note:1. TheProxymustbedepositedattheRegisteredOfficeoftheCompanyat
41,Chowringhee Road,Kolkata
700071,notlessthan48hoursbeforethetimeforholdingofmeeting.

Theformshouldbesignedacrossthestampasperspecimensignatureregisteredwithth
e Company.




Kanak Projects Limited
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867
Regd.Office:41,ChowringheeRoad,KanakBuilding,Kolkata70
0071 Tel: 2288 3970
Email:dlapkanak@gmail.com
Website:www.kanakprojectsitd.com

(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE 43"“ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO BE HELD ON
29.09.2022)

Name & Registered
Address of Sole/First
named Member:

Joint Holders Name (Ifany):
Folio No. / DP ID & ClientID:
No. of Equity Shares Held:

Dear Shareholder,

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility:

Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),Regulations,2015, the Company is pleased to
provide E-voting facility to the members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on Thursday,
29thSeptember,2022at11:00A.M.at“KanakBuilding”,41,ChowringheeRoad,Kolkata-70007 1andatanyadjournmentthereof.

TheCompanyhasengagedtheservicesofCentralDepositoryServices(India)Limited(CDSL)toprovidethee-votingfacility. Thee-
voting facility is available at the linkhttps://www.evotingindia.com.

The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below:

EVSN User PAN / Sequence
(Electronic Voting ID No.
Sequence Number)

The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period:

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On
Monday, 26"September, 2022 at 9.00 Wednesday, 28"September, 2022 at 5.00
AM.(IST) P.M.(IST)

Please read the instructions mentioned in the Notice of the AGM carefully before exercising your vote.

By Order of the Board
For Kanak Projects Limited.

Anshuman Prakash
Place:Kolkata Director
Date: 04.09.2022




Dear Shareholders

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 43" Annual Report together with the Audited

BOARDS REPORT

Statement of Accounts of Kanak Projects Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022.

1.  SUMMARISED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

STANDALONE

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March, 2022

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

Total Revenue 23,74,39580 39,00,97956
I. Total Revenue 23,74,39580 39,00,97956
1. Total Expenses 18,01,24896 27,08,52972
I11. Profit Before Taxes 5,73,14684 11,92,44984
V. Income Tax expense

Current Tax 1,39,49750 2,92,47350
Deferred Tax (28,72271) 763287
Income Tax for earlier year (17,74098) -

V. Profit/(loss) for the year 4,80,11303 8,92,34,348

The Company has started new activity during the preceding Financial year and the revenue

generated from Sale of Billets during the current year is 6,87,50931.

CONSOLIDATED

Particulars

For the Year ended

31st March, 2022

For the Year ended

31st March, 2021

Revenue from Operations 23,74,39580 39,00,97956
I. Total Revenue 23,74,39580 39,00,97956
I1. Total Expenses 18,01,24896 27,08,52968
I11. Profit Before Taxes 5,73,14684 11,92,44988
IV. Share of Profit/(Loss) of (27,68139) (36,77115)
Associates (Net of

Tax)

V. Income Tax expense

Current Tax 1,39,49750 2,92,47350
Deferred Tax (28,72271) 763287
Income Tax for earlier year (17,74098) -

V. Profit/(loss) for the year 452,43164 8,55,57236




2.  BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Company has earned a profit of Rs. 4,80,113.03 during the period under review. The present
financial situation of the Company has been stated in the Financial Statements in details. Your
Directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company.

Your Company discloses Standalone and Consolidated Unaudited Financial Results on a
quarterly basis, Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Results on an annual basis. The
Financial Statements of your Company have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as
applicable.

A detailed review on the operation and performance of the Company and its business is given in
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report. The same is enclosed as Annexure - A to this
Report.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

COVID-19 Pandemic has caused unprecedented economic disruption globally and in India. The
Company is sensitive about the impact of the Pandemic, not only on the human life but on
businesses and industrial activity across the globe, which will be realized only over next few
months. The Company has been monitoring the situation closely and has taken proactive
measures to comply with various directions /regulations / guidelines issued by the Government
and local bodies to ensure safety of workforce across all its factories and offices. The Company
has taken various safety measures for the safety of all employees.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s results will depend on
future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, evolving impact
on bill collections from consumers and support from respective State Governments and banks &
financial institutions. The Company has incurred substantial losses due to lockdown.

3. FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Management of the company always believes in its corporate and moral ethics at the time of
dealing with its stakeholders. The management is optimistic about the future growth of the
company.

4. DIVIDEND & TRANSFER OF FUND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

Our Directors did not recommend any dividend for the current financial year. The provisions of
Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and
paid last year.

5.  SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 4, 45, 24,000 divided into 44,
52,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.



6. RESERVES & SURPLUS

There has been no transfer to the General Reserve during the period under review.

7.  SUBSIDIARY COMPANY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As on 31st March, 2022, the company doesn’t have any Subsidiary but has an Associate
Company M/s. Lao Jan Tea Company Private Limited the details of the same are given in
Form AOC — 1 attached herewith and marked as “Annexure — B”.

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES AND THEIR
CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(1)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the associate Company M/s. Lao Jan Tea Company
Private Limited has contributed its Net Profit of Rs. 5,27,181 to the overall performance of the
company. The annual accounts of its Associate Company will also be kept for inspection by any
Member of the Company at the registered office of the Company. The Consolidated Financial
Statements presented by the Company include the financial information of its associates. As per
the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed separate
audited accounts of its associates on its website http://kanakprojectsltd.com/compliance-corner/.
and copy of separate audited financial statements of its subsidiary will be provided to the
shareholders at their request.

8. PUBLIC DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has outstanding loans advanced covered under the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by company are given in the notes to the financial statements

10. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
have constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and on the recommendation
of the said committee, the Board has approved a Corporate Social Responsibility (‘'CSR") policy
and the same has been uploaded in the website of the Company
http://kanakprojectsltd.com/compliance- corner/.which contains the CSR activities being carried
out by the Company, governance structure, implementation process, etc.

The Financial Year 2021-22, was a grim year; a year of unprecedented challenges for individuals
and institutions globally, including India. Despite the turbulent business environment caused by
the pandemic, your Company continued to illustrate its commitment towards social and
environmental priorities. The Company believes that CSR is a way of creating shared value and
contributing to social and environmental good. Company's strategy is to integrate its activities in


http://kanakprojectsltd.com/compliance-corner/
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15.

community development, social responsibility and environmental responsibility and encourage
each business unit or function to include these considerations into its operations.

Your Directors are pleased to inform that the Company has fulfilled its CSR obligations pursuant
to Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the year 2021-22 inter-alia on CSR projects.
During the period under review the Company has spent an amount of Rs. 25,00,000.00 towards
CSR (expenditure required to be made Rs. 20,54,029/-). Details of the CSR spending is attached
herewith in “Annexure - C”.

11. HUMAN RESOURCES

The well-disciplined workforce who has served the company for three decades lies at the very
foundation of the company's major achievements and this trend is set to continue. The
management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training
at periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the
principal of rewarding performance.

12. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Company is equipped with a proper and adequate system of internal controls for maintaining
proper accounting cost control and efficiency in operation. The Company also has adequate
system to ensure that all of its assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition, and transactions are authorized, recorded, and reported correctly. The internal
control system is supplemented by internal audits, review by management, documented policies
and procedures.

13. VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has complied with the laws
and the codes of conduct applicable to it and has ensured that the business is conducted with
integrity and accordingly the company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. This policy is
explained in corporate governance report and also posted on the website of company.

14, SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has also framed a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace which commits to provide a workplace that is free from all forms of discrimination,
including sexual harassment.

As per the Policy, any complaint received shall be forwarded to an Internal Complaint Committee
("1CC™") formed under the Policy for redressal. The investigation shall be carried out by ICC
constituted for this purpose. There was no such complaint during the year.

a. Number of Complaints Filed during the FY 0

b. llél\t}mber of Complaints Disposed of during the 0

C. Number of Complaints pending as on the 0
end of the FY

DIRECTORS, KMPS’ & COMMITTEES




None of the Director’s & KMPs were appointed or resigned during the financial year under
review:

16.1INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions relating to composition of Independent Directors is complied with the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under. The Independent Directors meet the
criteria of qualification stipulated in Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Board has carried out annual performance evaluation of its
own performance, the directors individually as well the evaluation of the working of its Audit,
Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholder committee.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed
a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their Remuneration.

MEETINGS

During the year, 8 Board Meetings, 4 Audit Committee Meeting, 1 Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, 1 Nomination and Remuneration Committee and, were held.

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended from time to time were adhered to while
considering the time gap between two meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company is having an audit committee comprising of the following directors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairperson Non Executive &
Independent Director
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member Non Executive &
Independent Director
Mrs. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive
Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company is having a Nomination and Remuneration committee comprising of the following
directors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandol Chairperson Non Executive & Independent
Director
Mrs. Princey Kandol Member Non Executive & Independent
Director
Ms. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive Director

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY COMMITTEE




The company is having Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprising of the
following directors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandol Chairperson Non Executive & Independent
Director
Mrs. Princey Kandol Member Non Executive & Independent
Director
Ms. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive Director

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The company is having Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of the following
directors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandol Chairperson Non Executive & Independent
Director
Mrs. Princey Kandol Member Non Executive & Independent
Director
Ms. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive Director

17. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS:

(A) Corporate Governance:

Your Company is listed with the Calcutta Stock Exchange and is compliant with all the
provisions required to be complied with as per the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and has taken adequate steps to adhere to all the stipulations
as laid down in Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and Clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation
(2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 [hereinafter referred to as Listing Regulations] as applicable, with regard to Corporate
Governance. As required, a report on Corporate Governance is provided in this Annual Report
along with certificate from Mrs. Shristi Garg, of Prateek Kohli & Associates confirming the
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the said
Regulations is attached to this report. The Corporate Governance Report is attached as
“Annexure — D”.

The Paid up Equity Capital of the Company is 4,45,24,000 which is less than 10 Crores and Net
Worth of the Company 1,09,06,68,300.59 which is greater than 25 Crores. Due to this there is
conflict of opinion between Management and different professionals for applicability of Clause
of Corporate Governance on the company. Hence we are complying with the Corporate
Governance compliances applicable as per Regulation 15 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

18 REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY THE AUDITORS

The Board hereby informs that there were no such reporting made by the Auditors in their report




for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2022.

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b) That such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been
selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) That proper internal financial control was in place and that the financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively.

f) That system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws was in place
and was adequate and operating effectively.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were contracts or arrangements entered into by the company in accordance with
provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which were in Ordinary Course of
Business.

All Related Party Transactions in usual course were placed before the Audit Committee as also
the Board for approval. The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is
uploaded on the Company's website.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company.
Further, there were Related Party transactions with the Promoters of Promoters Group who hold
more than 10% Shareholding or Voting rights in the company. Details of such Related Party
Party Transaction is mentioned in Annexure-G.

21. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

22. AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Salarpuria & Partners., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company having
Firm Registration Number 302113E were re-appointed their current term of appointment will
end on the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2026.




Being eligible for re-appointment M/s. Salarpuria & Partners have given their consent to act as
Statutory Auditor of the Company for the further period till the Annual General Meeting to be
held in 2026. Their appointment will be subject to the approval of shareholder in ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors alongwith notes to Schedules is enclosed with this
report. The observations made in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not
call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed Shristi Garg & Associates (CP No.: 17447, FCS: 11577), Company Secretaries to
undertake the secretarial audit of the company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith
as ‘Annexure-E’

Remarks from Secretarial Auditor:-

The Company has not followed Regulation 17 of the LODR, 2015 in respect of appointment
of Independent Director.

Explanation from Board:-

The Company is presently having 2 Independent Director. The Paid up Equity Capital of the
Company is 4,45,24,000 which is less than 10 Crores and Net Worth of the Company
1,09,06,68,300.59 which is greater than 25 Crores. Due to this there is conflict of opinion
between Management and different professionals for applicability of Clause of Corporate
Governance on the company. Thus the Company is require to appoint 1 more Independent
Director on the Board. The Company will appoint the same in the F.Y. 2022-23.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Mr. Santosh Kumar Agarwal, by profession a Chartered Accountants, holds office as the Internal
Auditor of the Company upto the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and
is eligible, for re-appointment. The company has received a letter from them to the effect that
their re- appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Companies Act,
2013 and they are not disqualified for re- appointment.

23. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:

The Company has used all possible efforts to minimize the Consumption of Energy.

24, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN




The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT - 9 is disclosed on
the website of the company on the following link http://kanakprojectsitd.com/compliance-
corner/.

25. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees
of the Company is attached as “Annexure F”. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and
Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the complete
information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up
to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a
copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

26. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is generating revenue from 2 segments of business, Rental Income and Billets
Sale.

(Amount in Rs. Hundreds)
Rental Income: 6,66,960.36
Billet Sale: 6,87,509.31

27. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section-148 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

28. EINANCIAL VIABILITY OF COMPANY

The financial viability of the company is totally dependent on the ability of the company to
infuse funds into the company and to bring growth in the revenue of the Company.

29. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company already has in place a structured Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading Policy with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated
employees of the Company. The Code has been further streamlined to keep parity with the new
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has also adapted SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and
given appropriate disclosures to the Stock Exchanges.

The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase
or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period
when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code.
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All Directors 7and the designated employees, who hold any shares in the Company, have
confirmed compliance with the Code.

30. IMPACT OF COVID-19

The entire world faced the deterrent effect of the Covid-19 pandemic and the nationwide
lockdown. The business and economic scenario has faced a huge difficulty to reach its
stakeholders. There has been a huge pressure in real estate sector during this pandemic situation.
The company has primary business of renting its property and earning rental income. Still
despite of these adverse situations the Directors have made headwinds and were able to bring
the company back on track. The Directors also ensure their members that the Board will always
be committed towards the betterment of the company and will make all endeavours to bring it
out of any adverse situation.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The company has been very well supported from all quarters and therefore your directors wish
to place on record their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from
Employees, Dealers, Suppliers, Central and State Governments, Bankers and others associated
with the Company.

Your Directors wish to thank the banks, financial institutions, shareholders and business
associates for their continued support and cooperation.

We look forward to receiving the continued patronage from all quarters to become a better and
stronger Company.

32. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the
name of the Company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

33. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from Banks
and Financial Institutions.

34. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board's Report and Management Discussion and Analysis
contain certain statements relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the
meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations.

Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regime,
other statues, market forces and other associated and incidental factors may however lead to
variation in actual results.

On Behalf of the Board
For Kanak Projects Limited

Sa/- Sd/-

Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash

— . —






Annexure - A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Real Estate Business

The Real Estate Industry in India is flourishing but presently it is facing problems of
increased inventory stock, significantly reduced number of transactions by the
Customer & increased Cost of Land & Construction. The Company is in continuous
process of making a vivacious presence for itself in real estateIndustry. Your Company
has earned a Rental Income of Rs. 6,08,228.86 in the Current Year as compared to Rs.
5,72,805.21 inthe P.Y.

Trading Activities

The Company has started new division of business of trading billets. As compared to
Previous year there is a decline in the sales of billets.

Other Activities

The Company’s allied business activities also includes investing, acquiring, holding or
otherwise dealing in shares, stocks and other securities.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Since the beginning of economic reforms and pragmatic and visionary policies
adopted by the Government, the Indian economy has been witnessing strong economic
growth along with demographic impetus of a growing population in the working-age
category. This is creating a massive demand-supply mismatch across the real estate
sector. The sheer increase in the ‘need for built-up space’ is opening up several
opportunities for developers- be it for constructing residential properties, creating
commercial space for offices or retail. Your Company is all set to avail such
opportunities and take a giant leap in the path of progress.

Apart from normal business risks, your company will be facing stiff competition from
existing as well as other new entrants in the same line of business. However pragmatic
and prudent policies and induction of young and dynamic visionaries with expertise
coupled with infusion of high-tech approach, your company will be progressing by
leaps and bounds.

OUTLOOK

Due to lockdown in the preceding Financial Year due to COVID - 19 announced by
the Central Government, there has been a major loss in whole of India. It is expected
that the outlook of the Industry will be better in years to come.

RISK AND CONCERN

The Real Estate Industry is largely impacted due to lockdown in the Preceding Financial



year due to COVID- 19 announced by the Central Government. The company is
overcoming the financial losses made during the period of lockdown.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal control system covering all its operations
in order to provide reasonable assurance with regard to information and maintenance
of proper accounting records, the economy and efficiency of operations, safeguarding
of assets against unauthorized use or losses, and the reliability of financial and
operational information.

The Internal Control mechanism comprises a well-defined organization structure, pre-
determined authority levels and clearly defined policy guidelines for appropriate
delegation of authority

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Financial performance of the Company has been given separately in the Directors'
Report

SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of renting of immovable properties
and sale of billets. Its allied business activities also includes investing, acquiring,
holding or otherwise dealing in shares, stocks and other securities. Segment revenue
includes sale and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment
including inter segment transfers. Inter segment transfers are accounted for based on
the transaction price agreed to between the segments.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable on direct
and/or on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as Unallocable.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company firmly believes that "People™ and "People driven Strategies" are the
pivotal force behind success of its growth. The HR philosophy is communicated to the
employees through various group interactions with the Top Management. In order to
ensure that its HR philosophy is translated into demonstrated action, the Company has
sound, pro-active and progressive HR strategy and practices.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report in regard to
projections, estimates and expectations have been made in good faith. Many
unforeseen factors may come into play and affect the actual results, which could be
different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and
outlook. Market data and product information contained in this Report have been



based on information gathered from various published and unpublished reports, and
their accuracy, reliability and completeness cannot be ensured.

Place: Kolkata
On Behalf of the Board

Date: 04.09.2022 For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Managing Director  Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909
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ANNEXURE - B

Part B: Associates and Joint VVentures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

Lao Jan Tea Co. Pvt. Ltd.

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31% March, 2022

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end

No. 8000
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture | 800000
Extend of Holding% 49.91

3. Description of how there is significant
influence

Holding is more than 20%

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is
not consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

Rs. 3,10,657.00

6. Profit/Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation

Rs. -27,681.00

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Dated: 04.09.2022

Place: Kolkata

On Behalf of the Board
For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Sudhir Prakash Anshuman
Prakash

Managing Director  Director
DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909




Annexure - C

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR policy of the Company has been formulated and adopted in terms of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company will
endeavour tocarry out various activities which have been stated in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. Kanak Projects Ltd. (Hereinafter refers to as KPL). KPL stands
committed to the social and economic development of the communities in which it
operates. The company’s commitment towards this includes giving increasing
opportunities for socially and economically disadvantageous sections of the society.
The Company has been contributing its time, expertise and resources to help
communities and undertaking a series of initiatives that are locally relevant.

KPL aims at taking up the programmes that benefit the communities in and around its
work centres and over a period of time, results in enhancing the quality of the life of the
people inthe area of its business operations.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Director | Designation Number of Number of
No. meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee Committee
held during attended during
the Year the
Year
1. | Neelima Jain Non Executive and 1 1
Non Independent
Director
2. | Nitin Kandoi IndependentDirector | 1 1
3. | Princey Kandoi | Director 1 1

3. Provide the weblink where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy andCSR
Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.-
www. kanakprojectsltd.com

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy)
Rules,2014, if applicable: NA



http://www.kanakprojectsltd.com/

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub rule (3) ofrule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year.: NA

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 10,30,24,172.9 /-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.

20,60,483.45

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programme or activities of the

previousfinancial years:-

(c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year: Rs. 32,385/-

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢): Rs. 20,28,098.45

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Amount Total Amount transferred to
Spent forthe | Unspent CSR Account as per
Financial section 135(6)

Year (in

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as
per second proviso to section
135(5)

Rs.) Amount Date of Transfer

Amount Date of Transfer

25,00,000 Not Applicable




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing project for the financial year:

112 3 4 |5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SI|Na |Item | Lo | Locatio |Proj | Amo | Am | Amou | Mode of | Mode of
. | me |fro ca | nof the ect |unt |o nt Impleme | Implementati
N |of |m I project dura | alloc | unt | transf | ntation | on Through
0. | the |the |ar tion |ated |spen |erred | Direct Implementing
Pro | list ea _ for tin | to Agency
i | of St | Dis the |the | Unspe
ect | acti a |t Proj | curr | nt
Vi te | rict ect |ent |CSR N [CSR
ties (in fina | Accou a | Registr
in Rs.) |n nt for m | ation
Sch cial | the e No.
e year | Projec
dule (in tas
VIl Rs.) | per
to Sectio
the n
Act 135(6
).
(inRs.)
Not Applicable
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the
financialyear:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI. | Name of Item Loc | Location of Amount | Mode | Mode of
No. | the from al theProject spent for | of Implementation
Project the list | area [giate | Distri | the Imple | through
of (Yes ct Project menta | implementing
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ALE
TRUST

TOTAL

Rs. 25,00,000

(d) amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N.A.

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 25,00,000

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: 32,385/-

Sl. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 20,60,483.45/-
company as per section 135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 25,00,000/-
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year(ii-i) 4,39,516.55/-
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 32,385/-
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any
(V) Amount available for set off in succeeding 4,71,901.55/-
financial years(iii-iv)

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset furnish the details relating
to theasset so created or acquired through CSR Spent in the financial year:

NA

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose
namesuch capital asset is registered, their address etc

(d) Provide details of the capital asset created or acquired (including
completeaddress and location of the capital asset)

10. Specify the reason if the company has failed to spend two percent of the

averagenet profit as per section 135(5): NA

Date: 04.09.2022
Place: Kolkata

On Behalf of the Board

For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sudhir Prakash Anshuman
. Prakash

Managing

Director Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909







Annexure - D

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on Corporate Governance is as follows:

1. COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance aims at the attainment of the highest
levels of transparency, accountability and responsibility in all operations and all interactions
with its Shareholders, Investors, Lenders, Employees, Government and other stakeholders.

As part of our commitment to run a values-driven and processes managed company, this
responsibility is taken up with highest discipline and vigilance by the Company’s Board of
Directors and its management team. The Company believes that all its operations and actions
must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value consistently over a
sustained period of time. The Board considers itself a Trustee of its shareholders and
acknowledges its responsibilities towards them for creating, enhancing and safeguarding their
wealth.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company's Board comprises of adequate mix of Independent and Non-Independent
Directors as well as Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Company's board members have diverse areas of knowledge and expertise, which is
necessary in providing as independent and objective view on business issues and assess them
from the stand point of the stakeholders’ of the Company.

a. Composition of Board of Directors

The Company's policy is to maintain optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. The Constitution of the Board as on March 31, 2022:

Mr. Sudhir Mr. Anshuman Prakash
Prakash Managing Executive Director (Promoter)
Director Executive

(Promoter)

Nationality Indian Nationality Indian

Age 73 Age 49

Date of 01/11/1988 Date of 21/11/1996
appointment appointment

Tenure on Board 34 years Tenure on Board 26
Termending date | NA Term ending date NA
Shareholding 1350 (0.03%) Shareholding 56780 (1.28%)
Board memberships — Indian listed companies | Board memberships — Indian

listedcompanies




DLX Limited

Managing Director
Executive

DLX Limited

Director & CFO
Non Executive

R K Commercial
Ltd

Non-Executive Director
and Non- Independent
Director (Promoter)

R K Commercial
Ltd

Executive Director
and Non-
Independent
Director (Promoter)

Committee

details as per
Regulation 26 of
Listing Regulations

Member: NIL

Chairperson: NIL

Committee

details as per
Regulation 26 of
Listing Regulations

Member: NIL

Chairperson: NIL

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Mr. Sidhant Prakash
Executive Director (Promoter)

Mr. Nikhil Prakash

Executive Director (Promoter)

Nationality Indian Nationality Indian

Age 33 Age 46

Date of 30/06/2015 Date of 30/06/2015
appointment appointment

Tenure on Board 7 Tenure on Board 7

Termending date | NA Term ending date NA
Shareholding 0 (0%) Shareholding 15370 (0.35%)

Board memberships — Indian listed companies

Board memberships — Indian

listedcompanies

DLX Limited Director R K Commercial Managing Director
Non-executive Ltd (Promoter)

R K Commercial |Executive Director and

Ltd Non-Independent
Director (Promoter)

Committee Member: NA Committee Member: NA

details as per
Regulation 26 of
Listing Regulations

Chairperson: NA

details as per
Regulation 26 of
Listing Regulations

Chairperson: NA

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Ms. Neelima Jain

Mr. Nitin Kandoi

Non-Executive Director and Independent | Non-Executive Director and Independent
Director (Non-Promoter) Director (Non-Promoter)

Nationality Indian Nationality Indian

Age 71 Age 36

Date of 30/03/2015 Date of 01/12/2020

appointment

appointment




Tenure on Board 8 Tenure on Board 2
Termending date | NA Term ending date 30.11.2025
Shareholding Nil Shareholding Nil

Board memberships — Indian listed companies

Board memberships — Indian

listedcompanies
-Nil

DLX Limited Director DLX Limited Director
Non-Executive Non-Executive
R K Commercial | Director R K Commercial Director

Ltd Non-executive Ltd Non-Executive

Committee Member: Audit | Committee Member: Nil

details as per Committee, Nomination | details as per

Regulation 26 of and Remuneration | Regulation 26 of Chairperson:

Listing Committee, Corporate | Listing Audit

Regulations Social Responsibility | Regulations Committee,
Committee and Nomination and
Stakeholders Remuneration
Relationship Committee Committee,
of DLX Limited. Corporate
Audit Committee, Social
Nomination and Responsibility
Remuneration Committee and
Committee and Stakeholders
Stakeholders Relationship
Relationship Committee Committee of
of R K DLX

Commercial Limited.

Limited. Audit Committee and

Chairperson: N.A

Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee of R
KCommercial
Ltd.

Areas of expertise | Finance Background

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Mr. Princey Kandoi
Non-Executive Director and Non-Independent
Director (Non-Promoter)

Nationality Indian

Age 37

Date of appointment 01/12/2020
Tenure on Board 2

Term ending date 30.11.2025
Shareholding Nil

Board memberships — Indian listed companies
Nil

DLX Limited Director
Non-Executive




R K Commercial Ltd

Director
Non-executive

Committee

Listing

details as per
Regulation 26 of

Regulations

Member: Audit
Committee and
Nomination and

Remuneration
Committee of RK
Commercial Ltd
Audit Committee and
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee of DLX
Ltd

Chairperson: Nil

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

The Board periodically reviews the Compliance report pertaining to all laws applicable to the
Company, prepared by the Company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instanceof
non-compliances.

b. Attendance record of Board meetings

During the year under review, 8 (Eight) Board meetings were held. The Board members are
given appropriate documents and information in advance of each board meeting.

The attendance record of all directors on the Board and the last AGM and the number of

Companies / Committees where he / she is a Director / Member as under:

Name Attendance Date of Total No of No % of

of the at last AGM original Directorship Board of Attenda

Direct Appointmen including Meetin Board nce

or t this gheld Meeti
Company ng
attend
ed

Mr. Neelima Yes 30/03/20 4 8 4 50%
Jain 15
Mr. Sudhir No 01/11/19 15 8 7 87.5%
Prakash 88
Mr. Nikhil Yes 30/06/20 9 8 4 50%
Prakash 15
Mr. Yes 21/11/19 8 8 100%
Anshu 96 16
man
Prakas
h
Mr. Nitin Yes 01/12/20 8 7 87.5%
Kandoi 20 7




Mr. Sidhant Yes 30/06/20 8 8 100%
Prakash 15 9

Mr. Princey Yes 01/12/20 3 8 7 87.5%
Kandoi 20

c. Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:

Sr. Name of Director Relationship with other Directors

No.
1 Mr. Sudhir Prakash Father of :

Mr. Nikhil Prakash

Mr. Anshuman Prakash

2 Mr. Sidhant Prakash Nephew of Mr. Sudhir Prakash

3 Mr. Neelima Jain Not related to any other Director
4 Mr. Nitin Kandoi Not related to any other Director
5 Mrs. Princey Kandoi Not related to any other Director

COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY:
(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee of the Company consist three
directors. All the directors have good knowledge of finance, accounts as well as company law.
The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Nitin Kandoi. The other members of the committee are
Mrs.Princey Kandoi, Ms. Neelima Jain.

Terms of Reference —
The board terms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes the following:

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the Company.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the management the annual financial statements and the auditor's report
thereon, before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in Director's Responsibility Statement included in
Board's report;

(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c) Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

(e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions;

(9) Qualifications in the draft audit report;



10.
1.
12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, statement of uses and application of funds raised
through an issue, statement of funds utilized for other purposes and report of monitoring
agency.

Review and monitor the auditors' independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process.

App_roval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon.
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders,

Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle-Blower mechanism.

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer.

To review report submitted by Monitoring Agency informing material deviations in the
utilization of Issue proceeds and to make necessary recommendations to the Board, if,
when and where applicable.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 04 (Four) times on 23/06/2021,
03/08/2021,06/11/2021 and 07/02/2022. Attendance of the members after re-constitution at the
meetingwas as follows:



Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings
attended
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairman 1
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member 1
Ms. Neelima Jain Member 1

(b) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration committee comprise of three directors, viz, Mr. Nitin Kandoi
as Chairman, Mrs. Princey Kandoi and Ms. Neelima Jain as other members.

Attendance of the members after re-constitution at the meeting was as follows:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings
attended
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairman 1
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member 1
Ms. Neelima Jain Member 1

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria lay
down. Recommended to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluationof
every director performance.

The Committee had been consulted to review and approve the annual salaries, commission,
service agreement and other employment conditions for the executive directors. The
remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing industry practice.

The terms of reference of the Committee are in line with the requirements of the CompaniesAct,
2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule 1l to the SEBI LODR.

The terms of reference of the Committee are broadly as under:
1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relatingto,

the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the
board.

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity.



4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the
board of directors their appointment and removal.

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on
the basis of there of performance evaluation of independent directors.

During the year under review, the Committee met 01 (One) times on 07/02/2022, and all
members were present at the meetings.

Details of the remuneration to the Executive Directors provided as per accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2022 are given below:

Executive Director Salary (In Rs) Commission (In Rs)

Mr. Nikhil Prakash 32,50,000 NIL

Mr. Anshuman Prakash 30,90,000 NIL

Mr. Sidhant Prakash 30,90,000 NIL

Mr. Sudhir Prakash NIL NIL

Non-Executive Director Sitting Fees Commissio | Total
(InRs.) n(ln Rs.) (In

Rs.)
NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Neelima Jain

Details of the remuneration to the Non-Executive Director provided as per accounts for the Year ended
March 31, 2022 are given below: NA

Familiarization Programmes:

The management conducts familiarization programmes for its Directors which includes
discussion on industry outlook and updates on various matters viz. Regulatory, Business, Stock
exchange operations, Finance, Internal Control, Information Technology etc. The details of
programmes for familiarization of Directors are available on the Company’s website
http://www.kanakprojectsltd.com/

(c) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprise of three directors, viz, Mr. Nitin Kandoi as
Chairman, Mrs. Princey Kandoi and Ms. Neelima Jain as other members.



The Committee has been constituted to specifically look into redressal of shareholders'
grievance matters. The Committee has also been dealing the power to approve transfer /
transmission, issue of new or duplicate certificates, sub-division of shares, split of shares and all
matters related to shares.

Mrs. Ginni Lohariwala, the Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer.

During the year under review, the Committee met 04 (Four) time on 23/06/2021, 03/08/2021,
06/11/2021, 07/02/2022 and all members present at the meeting.

Total number of letters and complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders
during the year under review was NIL as on March 31, 2022 there are NIL complaints pending
with the Company.

(d) CORPORTE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprise of three directors, viz, Mr. Nitin Kandoi as
Chairman, Mrs. Princey Kandoi and Ms. Neelima Jain as other members.

The Committee met 01 (One) time on 15/03/2022 and all members present at the meeting.

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As required by SEBI LODR, the Independent Directors held 01 meeting during the year. All
Independent Directors attended the same.

The Independent Directors discussed / review the matters specified in Regulation 25 of SEBI
LODR.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Year General Meeting Date Time Special Resolution Passed

2020-21 Annual General 30/12/2021 [11:00AM | 1 Special Resolution was
Meeting passed.

2019-20 Annual General 31/12/2020 [2.30 P.M. | 6 Special Resolution was
Meeting passed.

2018-19 Annual General 30/09/2019 [2.30 P.M. | No Special Resolution was

Meeting passed.
2018-19 Extra-Ordinary 25.02.2019 [2.00 P.M. | 1 Special Resolution was
General Meeting passed.

*1 Extraordinary General Meeting was held during 2018-19 Financial Year.



DISCLOSURES

(a) Basis of related party transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest ofthe
Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval.

(b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any
matterrelated to Capital Markets during the last three years:

There have been no penalties or strictures imposed by SEBI or any statutory authority on anymatter
related to the capital markets during the last three years.

(c) Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns.
The Vigil mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s) or
employee(s) or any other person who avail the mechanism and also provide for direct access to
the chairperson of the audit committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

(c) The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulations as per Chapter
IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Compliance Report on Non mandatory requirements under Regulation 27(1).
(d) Risk management

The Company operates in an increasingly volatile and challenging business environment. The
Company’s overall risk management seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on its
performance. The Company has created the Risk Management charter for building a strong risk
management culture.

Board of Directors confirms that there exist no elements of risks, if any, which in the opinion of
the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

(e) Compliance by the Company

There are no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters, nor have any
[strictures been imposed by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority on anymatter
relating to SEBI Compliance norms during the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021.

(f) Performance Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the
working of its Committees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee laid down the criteria for performance
evaluation of Independent Directors and other Directors, Board of Directors and the various
committees of the Board of Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation cover the areas
relevant to theirfunctioning as Chairman, Independent Directors or other Directors, Member of
Board or committees of the Board. A Structured questionnaire, evolved through discussions



within the Board, has been used for this purpose.

The purposes of evaluation of the Board and its Committees was to analyze how the Board and
its committees are functioning, the time spent by the Board while considering matters and
whether the terms of reference of the Board Committees have been met, beside compliance of
provisions of the Act and Listing Agreement.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. However, given the
nascent nature of this process, the evaluation process will be strengthened through experienceand
also by identifying best practices used by other companies.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the
Company, as required by Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI LODR. The Company has received
confirmation from the Directors and Senior Management regarding compliance with the code for
the year ended March 31, 2022. The code has been displayed on the Company's website. A
declaration from Managing Director forms part of this report.

To,

The Board of Directors
Kanak Projects Limited
41, Chowringhee Road

4t Floor, Kolkata —700040
Dear Sir,
Sub: Compliance with the Company's Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

In accordance with Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with Code of Ethics and Business Conduct of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Place: Kolkata For Kanak Projects Limited
Date: 04.09.2022 sd/-

Sudhir Prakash
Managing
DirectorDIN:
00434020

Fees paid to Auditors:

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis,to
the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory
auditor is a part:

Statutory Audit Fee: Rs. 3,50,000/-

Tax Audit Fee: Rs. 30,000/-

Fees are exclusive of taxes as applicable. No payment has been made to the statutory auditors
from subsidiaries of the Exchange or to any network firm/entity.

COMPLAINTS PERTAINING TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

a. humber of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
c. humber of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil



Non-Compliance with the Conditions of Corporate Governance:

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read
with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations, to the
extent as applicable, with regards to Corporate Governance.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a revised “Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report
Trading in Securities and Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information” (Revised
Code) in Compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations,
2018. The same was effective from April 01st 2019 and shall be made available on the
Company’s website http://www.kanakprojectsltd.com.

DISCLOSURE ON NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
a. The Board has a Executive Chairman. The Independent Directors are only receiving sitting
fees for attending meetings.

b. Shareholders Rights: Annual Accounts are circulated to all the shareholders and also
published in the website of the company after passing by the shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

c. Audit qualifications: There are no qualifications contained in the Auditor’s Report on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

d. Training of Board members: The Directors are also appraised of all important changes in
applicable legislation, enactment, guidelines, accounting standards, etc. to enable them to take
informed decisions.

e. Disclosures of web-link for disclosing policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries, policy
on dealing with related party transactions, disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity
hedging activities and disclosure of details of utilization of funds raised through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) are not
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS RE APPOINTED
As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures) Regulations, 2015 as

amendedfrom time to time, the details of membership and other relevant details in respect
of Directors who are being recommended for re-appointment are given hereunder:-

Name of the | Age Qualification Experience Directorship in

Director other Public
Limited
Companies

Mr. Nikkhil | 46 Graduate 7 years 2

Prakash

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION


http://www.kanakprojectsltd.com/

1. Annual General Meeting

Day, Date & Time

Venue

Thursday, 29" September, 2022 at 11.00
A.M.Kanak Building, 41, Chowringhee Road,
Kolkata-700071




2. Financial Year

April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

3. Dividend payment date

The Company has not declared and paid any
Dividend.

4. Listing Details

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
(BSE)

7, Lyons Range, Dalhousie, Kolkata-
700001,West Bengal.

5. Stock Codes

Scrip Code:
ISIN: INE928E01016
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867

6. Market Price data- high, low during
each month in last financial year

Not Applicable as the Company’s shares are
not actively trading.

7. Performance in comparison to broad-
based indices such as BSE Sensex,
CRISIL Index etc.

Not applicable as the Company’s shares are
not actively trading.

8. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Not applicable. The Company’s internal
team maintains the Share Capital works.

9. Share Transfer System

Share Transfer System is managed by the
RTA.

NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED

(Registrar & Share Transfer

Agent)3A, Auckland Place, 7t
Floor
Room No. 7A and 7B, Kolkata - 700017

10. Dematerialization of shares and

liquidity

No Dematerialization request have been
during the Financial Year.

11.  Compliance Officer / Company

Secretary

Ginni Lohariwala
2A, Kedar Bose Lane, 3rd Floor, Kolkata
—700025




Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2022

Shareholding Category No of Number % of Holding
Shareholders ofShares
Promoter & Promoter
Group
5 3313500 74.42
Individual/ HUF
1 100 .002
Body Corporate
Public Shareholding
Institutions
Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate 3 1138520 25.571
Individual Shareholders 3 280 0.006
holding nominal value upto
Rs. 2 Lac
Individual Shareholders 0 0 0
holding nominal value
greater than Rs. 2 Lac
Any Other (NRI & Clearing | 0 0 0
Members)
0 0 0
HUF
Total 12 4452400 100

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATION:

A certificate from practicing company secretary confirming that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company were debarred or disqualified from being re-appointed under retirementby
rotation and/or continuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairsor
any other statutory authorities is attached and form part of this report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATE:

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the CFO made a certification to the
Board of Directors in the prescribed format for the year at the review, which has been reviewed
by the Audit Committees and taken on record by the Board. The same is attached to this report.



COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE:

A Certificate from M/s. Shristi Garg & Associates, confirming compliances with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is
attached to this report.

Equity Shares in the Suspense Account: NIL

ANNUAL REPORT:

Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Auditor’s Report,
Boards’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussions and
Analysis Report and other material and related matters/ information is circulated by
email to the Shareholders and others entitled thereto. The copy of Annual Report is
also available on Company’s website at www.cse- india.com.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate
Governance. It is process of sharing information, ideas, thoughts, opinions and plans
to all stakeholders which promote management -shareholder relations. The Company
regularly interacts with shareholders through multiple channels of communication
such as results announcement, annual reports, media releases, and Company's website
and through green initiatives.

The above Report was placed before and approved by the Board of Directors at their
Meeting held on 04.09.2022

Place: Kolkata
Date: 04.09.2022 On Behalf of the Board

For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Sudhir Prakash Anshuman
Prakash

Managing Director  Director
DIN: 00434020 DIN:

00434909



l}s Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

ANNEXURE - E

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315t Day of
March, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kanak Projects Limited
L67020WB1979PLC031867

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Kanak Projects Limited
(hereinafter called the Company). The Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by theCompany, its
officers, and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended 318t March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 315! March, 2022
according to the provisions of:

L. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

I1. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;
III.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
IV. The following Regulations (as amended from time to time) and Guidelines prescribed

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

Office Address : 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street 6" Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
DA : cspkohli@gmail.com; @ +91 9038410495; @ +91 9874737484
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I}s Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i. The uniform Listing Agreements entered into by the Company, with
TheCalcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

ii. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR).

iii. The Secretarial Standards (SS - 1 and SS 2) issued by the Institute of
CompanySecretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act,Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director as
stipulated under the Act.

The composition of Committees as required to be constituted under the Act
and LODR are duly constituted as per the provisions of the Act but the
Company has not followed Regulation 17 of the LODR, 2015 in respect of
appointment of Independent Director.

Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board/Committee
Meetings. Information and circulation of the agenda with detailed
information thereof, convening of meetings was done in compliance with the
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, etc. A system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.

Resolutions were carried through majority decision. The minutes of the meetings
held during the audit period did not reveal any dissenting members' views.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, Rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no major events
which took place in the company.

Place: Kolkata For Prateek Kohli & Associates
. Company Secretaries
Date: 27.08.2022 sd/-
UDIN: F011577D000862108 Shristi Garg
Partner
C.P.No.: 17447

Our report is also to be read with our letter annexed in Annexure 1.

Office Address : 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street 6" Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
DA : cspkohli@gmail.com; @ +91 9038410495; @ +91 9874737484
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I}s Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

ANNEXURE -1
To,
The Members

Kanak Projects Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these secretarial records basedon our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed providea reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Were ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future
viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Prateek Kohli & Associates

Place: Kolkata Company Secretaries
Sd/-

Date: 27.08.2022d Shristi Garg
Partner
C.P.No.: 17447

Office Address : 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street 6" Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
DA : cspkohli@gmail.com; @ +91 9038410495; @ +91 9874737484
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Annexure-F

(i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer & Company
Secretary during the Financial Year 2021-22, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median
remuneration of employees of the Company:-

Sl. Name of the Designation | % of increase | Remuneration | Ratio of
No. Person compared to Remuneration
P.Y. tothe median
remuneration
of
employees
1 |Mr. Sudhir Managing | - - -
Prakash Director
2 |Mr. Anshuman Executiv 8.421 30,90,000
Prakash e
Director
3 Mr. Nikhil Executive 14.03 32,50,000
Prakash Director
4 Mr. Sidhant | Executive | 8.421 30,90,000
Prakash Director
5 Mrs. Ginni| Company - 75,000
Lohariwala Secretary

(ii) Other Directors of the Company are paid only sitting fees which are not considered as
remuneration.

(iii)

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
Financial Year 2021- 2022:

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:- 21

Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentage increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration:-

10.29% of the salary increased.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:-

Yes

2. There is no employee who is in receipt of remuneration in excess of the remuneration that is drawn
by the Managing Director or Whole-time Director or Manager and holds by himself or along with
his spouse and dependent children, two per cent or more of the equity shares of the Company.



Place: Kolkata
Date: 04.09.2022

Sd/-
Sudhir
Prakash

Managing

Director DIN:

00434020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of
Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/-
Anshuman
Prakash

Director
DIN:
00434909



FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure-G

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Kanak Projects Ltd.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Name (s) of the | Nature of | Nature of | Duration .
SL No. | related party contracts relationship | of the Salient Amount in Rs.
contracts. terms
Enterprise
Owned or
Significantly
Barsana Farms License Fees Influenced by | 12
1. . . N/A 24,000
Private Ltd Received Key MONTHS /

Managerial
Personnel or
their relatives

On Behalf of the Board

For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/-

Sudhir Prakash

Managing Director

DIN: 00434020

Sd/-
Anshuman Prakash
Director

DIN: 00434909



CFO Compliance Certification

To,
The Board of Directors
Kanak Projects Limited

We, Sudhir Prakash, Managing Director and Lalita Kanta Samal, Chief Financial Officer of
Kanak Projects

Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on
31.03.2021 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

(11) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and Regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year ended on 31.03.2021 which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the
company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for
Financial Reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of
the company pertaining to financial reporting.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

(i) That there was no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during
the year;

(i) That there was no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the
same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) There were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and the
involvement of the management or an employee having a significant role in internal control
system over financial reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Place: Kolkata Kanak Projects Limited

Date: 04.09.2022

Sd/- Sd/-
Lalita Kanta Samal Sudhir Prakash
CFO/KMP Managing
Director

PAN: AKTPS1391M DIN: 00434020



Company Secretaries

I]s Prateek Kohli & Associates

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

Kanak Projects Ltd

CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kanak
Projects Ltd (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st March 2022, as stipulated in
Regulation 17 to 27, 46(2) (b) to (i), Schedule Il and V (paragraphs C, D and E) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time.
We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certifications.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, and the representations made by the directors and the management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 27t August, 2022

UDIN: F011577D000862075S For Prateek Kohli & Associates
Company Secretaries

Shristi Garg
Partner
C.P.No.: 17447

Office Address : 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street 6" Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
D4 : cspkohli@gmail.com:; @ +91 9038410495; @ +91 9874737484
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l}s Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

KANAK PROJECTS LTD

41 CHOWRINGHEE ROAD

KANAK BUILDING KOLKATA WB 700071

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
KANAK PROJECTS LTD (CIN L67020WB1979PLC031867) and having registered office at 41 CHOWRINGHEE
ROAD KANAK BUILDING KOLKATA WB 700071 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by
the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V Para - C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in
Company
1. NEELIMA JAIN 00348042 30/03/2015
2. SUDHIR PRAKASH 00434020 01/11/1988
3. NIKHIL PRAKASH 00434328 30/06/2015
4. ANSHUMAN PRAKASH 00434909 21/11/1996
5. NITIN KANDOI 03559176 01/12/2020
6. SIDHANT PRAKASH 06850941 30/06/2015
7. PRINCEY KANDOI 08946234 01/12/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata For Prateek Kohli & Associates
Date: 27t August, 2022 (Company Secretaries)
UDIN: F011577D000862119
Sd/-
Shristi Garg
(Partner)

(CP. No.: 17447)

Office Address : 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street 6" Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
D4 : cspkohli@gmail.com; @ +91 9038410495; @ +91 9874737484
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SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
7, Chittaranjan Avenue
Kolkata 700 072

Phone No.2237 5400/01
Fax No. : 2225 0992

E-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com

KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND
CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022




Salarpuria & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

7, C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072
Phone : 2237 5400/ 5401, 4014 5400 - 5410
website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com
e-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com
office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Kanak Projects Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Kanak Projects Limited (“‘the
Company”’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and its Profit (including Other Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS Financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.




Salarpuria & Partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
7, C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072
Phone : 2237 5400/ 5401, 4014 5400 - 5410
website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com
e-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com
office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore
Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, and Shareholder’s Information,
but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statement.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant of the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decision of user taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind
AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our cpinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
- Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure —B" to this report.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.
" In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March, 2022 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the standalone financial statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. lg




CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

7, C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072
Phone : 2237 5400 / 5401, 4014 5400 - 5410
website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com
e-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com
office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore

(-/X Salarpuria & Partners

(iv) (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(iv) (b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,

contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year. Hence,
compliance in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

For Salarpuria & Partners
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAl Reg. N0.302113E

C@)‘n'

UDIN: 2206436 AN R ZYXCh )
Place: Kolkata
Date: 4.0( 2022
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ANNEXURE “A’ TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the course of audit, we state that:

i. a) A)The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.
B) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any intangible

assets. Hence the comment on the clause i(a)(B) is not required.

b) As explained to us the Property Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets during the
year. So, comment on the clause i (d) is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any Benami Property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 49 of the
Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories consists of only securities held in
demat statement so there is no need of physical verification arrise hence comment on the clause ii(a) is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. So,comment on the clause ii(b) is
not applicable.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made investments and granted
unsecured loan to companies during the year, in respect of which-

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans to any other entity-

(A) The Company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans and guarantee and security
to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

(B) The aggregate amount of loan provided during the year and balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date with respect to loans to companies other than subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates
is Rs.80,000 and Rs.14,76,978 respectively.(figures in Hundred)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relatiqn to investments made,
grant of all loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
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(c) In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have been stipulated and the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the
principal and interest.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no amounts overdue for more than
ninety days in respect of the loan granted to the Companies. So comment on the clause 3(iii) (d) of the
said order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of loan
granted has not fallen due during the year. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the said order
is not applicable.

(f) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans which is
repayable on demand. Aggregate amount of loan repayable on demand is Rs14,76,978 (Figures in
Hundred) granted to related parties which is 100% of the total loan granted.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
wherever applicable with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans,
investments, guarantees and security made.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no such deposits, taken by the Company,
for which directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the rules framed there under, are required to be complied
with. Hence, comment on clause 3(v) of the said order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company. Thus, reporting under clause
3(vi) of the said order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. a) According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations given to us, it is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues like Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess, Goods and services tax and Other Statutory
Dues with the appropriate authorities during the year except municipal tax of Rs 1,99,780.82 were
outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) On the basis of information and explanations given to us, the dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax
or duty of custom or duty of excise or goods and services tax that have not been deposited on account of
any dispute have been mentioned below:

Name of the Statute Nature of Amount Period Forum where
Dues (" 00) dispute is pending
Kolkata Municipal Corporation Municipal Tax | 31,30,846.25 | F.Y.2006-07 Hon’ble  Calcutta
(Net of To High Court

Payment) F.Y. 2020-21

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 15,849 A.Y 2013-14 | C.L.TAppeal’
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 33,744 AY 2017-18 /| €I.T _Aypeal
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viii. As per the information and explanation provided to us there were no transactions that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961(43 of 1961). Hence comment on Paragraph 3(viii) of the said order is not applicable.

ix. (a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender. Hence comment on Paragraph 3(ix) (a) of the said order is not applicable.

(b) As per the information and explanations given to us the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or any other lender. Refer Note 51 of Ind AS Financial Statements.

(c) As per the information and explanations given to us the company has not taken any term loan during the
year, hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the said order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term
basis have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(f) As per the information and explanations given to us the company has not raised any loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, hence reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) of the said order is not applicable.

x. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Hence
comment on Paragraph 3(x)(a) of the said order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Hence comment on
Paragraph 3(x)(b) of the said order is not applicable.

xi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub section (12) of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

(c) As per Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, there is no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year, therefore comment on this clause of the said order is not applicable.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a to c) of the said order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable

Indian Accounting Standards.
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xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and

nature of the business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the period under audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transaction with directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities and is not a Core Investment
Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the said order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year and immediately preceding
financial year. Hence comment on paragraph 3(vii) of the said order is not applicable.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence, comment
on paragraph 3(xviii) of the said order is not applicable.

xix. On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payments of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind As Financial Statements and our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any materiality
uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing as on the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with
second proviso to sub section (5) of Section 135 of the said act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a)
of the said order is not applicable.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects. So,
compliance with sub section (6) of Section 135 is not applicable. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(b) of the said order is not applicable.

For Salarpuria & Partners
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E

UD!N: 22063267 AN RAXRCY 1)
Place: Kolkata

Date: Ro6.p7. 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to Paragraph 2 (f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kanak Projects Limited ("the
Company") as of 31st March, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act. 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these

financial statements. N .
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March,2022, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Salarpuria & Partners
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E % K
ofgi}lﬁ

UDIN 22663261 AN RZX 41y
Place: Kolkata

Date: 26 .08.2p020
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Amounts in Hundreds -
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(1) |Non-current assets
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(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,22,290.90 1,51,810.99
it} Investment Property 4 13,01,426.69 9,98,205.23
(c) Financial assets
i. Investments 5 57,51,394.61 39,34,631.61
ii. Loans 6 10,13,221.87 10,13,221.87
iii. Other financial assets 7 7,29,347.04 18,951.07
(d) Other non-current assets 8 6,44,587.72 1,90,087.72
Total non-current assets 95,62,268.83 63,06,908.49
(2) [Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 3,40,694.36 4,46,163.84
(b) Financial assets
i. Trade Receivables 10 3,29,676.44 3,19,053.06
ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 67,709.93 6,16,164.81
iii. Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 10,59,288.71 30,50,968.72
iv. Loans 6 4,63,756.18 3,83,473.47
v. Other financial assets 7 1,57,478.63 3,89,321.57
(c) Current Tax Asset (net) 13 1,04,181.62 -
(d)  Other current assets 14 8,045.05 47,328.75
Total current assets o 25,30,830.92 52,52,474.22

Total assets (1+2)

1,20,93,099.75
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(a) [equity

As
4,45,240.00

(a) Equity share capital 15 4,45,240.00
(b} Other equity 16 1,08,19,965.41 1,02,73,897.60
Total equity 1,12,65,205.41 1,07,19,137.60
(B) |LIABILITIES
(1) [Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowing 17 11,713.41 18,393.36
ii. Other financial liabilities 18 1,92,839.98 1,73,240.96
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 28,801.27 51,814.54
(c) Other Non- Current liabilities 20 1,09,208.54 1,65,807.76
Total non-current liabilities 3,42,563.18 4,09,256.62
(2) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 21 6,679.95 2,50,637.44
ii. Trade Payables:-
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 9,080.43 -
(B) total outstlanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 23 19,355.61 42,43035
small enterprises.
iii. Other financial liabilities 23 16,373.11 26,311.42
(b} Current Tax Liability (neij 13 19,775.71
(c) Other current liabilities 24 35,408.13 34,941.07
(d) Provisions 25 3,68,433.94 56,892.50
Total current liabilities 4,85,331.17 4,30,988.49
Total liabilities (1+2} 8,27,894.35 8,40,245.11

Total equity and liabilities (A+B)

1,20,93,099.75

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes

The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statement

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.302113E
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sarvesh Kumar Singh

Partner
Membership No : 069367

Place : Kolkata

Date : 3,0.9_:2_021,
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Sudhir Prakash

(Managing Director)

DIN-00434020

/z-{% /miﬂmfff’”‘*i A [/‘Je'\mma,h

Ginni Lohariwala
(Company Secretary)
PAN-AJYPL5486C

Lalita Kanta Samal
(Chief Financial Officer)
PAN-AKTPS1391M

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A, '/‘YI M{W
e
Anshuman Prakash

(Director)
DIN-00434909

1,15,59,382.71
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I. |Revenue
Revenue from Operations 26 16,54,914.73 27,41,613.38
Other Income 27 7,19,481.07 11,59,366.18
Total Income (1} 23,74,395.80 39,00,979.56
Il. |Expenses -
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 7,80,035.50 22,37,179.80
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade 29 1,05,469.48 (2,57,127.97)
Employee Benefit Expense 30 1,94,594.43 1,58,898.84
Finance Costs 31 19,152.73 67,461.49
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 32 75,335.35 58,290.51
Other Expenses 33 6,26,661.47 4,43,827.05
Total Expenses (Il) 18,01,248.96 27,08,529.72
1. |Profit/(loss) before tax (I-11) 5,73,146.84 11,92,449.84
IV. |Income tax expense
- Current tax 1,39,497.50 2,92,473.50
- Deferred tax (28,722.71) 7,632.87
Income Tax For Earlier Year (17,740.98) -
Total tax expense (IV) 93,033.81 3,00,106.37
V. |Profit for the year (llI- 1V) 4,80,113.03 8,92,343.48
V1. |Other Comprehensive Income
Al(i) items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity instruments 66,588.10 2,53,482.87
Rir::ia:::;ir:ents of post-employment defined benefit (2,121.11) (910.91)
Alii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to (4,886.08) (51,201.01)
Profit or Loss
B(i) Items that will be reclassifies to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments 7,197.20 -
B(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to (823.36) -
Profit or Loss
.ol compraertve come o e oot {2 % e Pt sase 7
VIIl. |Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 35 10.78 20.04

significant Accounting Policies And Other Notes
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statement

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. N0.302113E /

/

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

{  sudhir Prakash
\ ) ha) ' (Managing Director)
Y DIN-00434020

sarvesh Kumar Singh

Partner
Membership No : 069367

La

Place : Kolkata
pate : 36 .0, 2022

lita Kanta Samal

(Chief Financial Officer)
PAN-AKTPS1391M
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Anshuman Prakash
(Director)
DIN-00434909
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Ginni Lohariwala
(Company Secretary)
PAN-AJYPL5486C




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of Standalone Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Profit before tax 5,73,146.84 11,92,449.84
Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 75,335.35 58,290.51
Dividend on Investments (4,144.60) (2,261.01)
Bad Debt - (3,472.00)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Mutual Fund (1,95,676.21) (4,28,732.13)
(Profit)/Loss from Partnership Firm - (4,031.90)
(Profit)/Loss from Sale of Motor Car - (8,440.07)
Finance costs 3,474.99 41,298.37
Net Gain on Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (2,18,345.62) 88,890.66
Interest Received (1,91,103.76) (3,87,740.02)
Income from Operating Activities before changes in Operating Assets and Taxes 42,686.99 5,46,252.25
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 1,05,469.48 (2,57,127.97)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (10,623.38) (2,88,771.38)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans- Current (80,282.71) 94,575.68
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets- Current 2,31,842.95 (1,10,171.17)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets 39,283.70 (42,076.02)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 16,005.69 (5,851.84)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities-Current (9,938.31) (5,971.24)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 3,07,751.56 22,264.61
Cash generated from operations 6,42,195.97 (46,877.09)
Income taxes paid (2,44,700.90) (2,30,596.51)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,97,495.06 (2,77,473.60)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Investment Property
Payments for (Purchase)/Sale of Investments (Net)
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Fixed Deposits
Loan Given
Advance Given
Repayment of Advance Given

(12,681.72)
(3,36,355.00)
(13,29,703.34)
1,91,103.76
4,144.60
6,18,730.08

(4,54,500.00)

(1,00,557.58)
33,438.07
(2,05,755.00)
14,63,833.40
3,87,740.02
2,261.01
1,24,967.41
2,32,405.27

1,88,500.00

Net cash outflow from investing activities

(13,19,261.62)

21,26,832.60

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (3,474.99) (41,298.37)
Loan/ Advance Taken (6,679.95) 18,393.36
Loan/ Advance Paid (38,650.02) (23,573.23)
(Repayment)/ Acceptance of Security Deposit (Net) 4,859.99 (14,07,237.06)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (43,944.97) (14,53,715.30)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (9,65,711.52) 3,95,643.70
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 10,33,421.44 6,37,777.75
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 67,709.93 10,33,421.44

%




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of Standalone Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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Balances with banks

- On Current Accounts 42,712.36 5,94,135.37

- On Bank Overdraft - (2,44,463.29)

- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of less than 3 months - -

- On Fixed Deposits pledged against Bank Overdraft - 6,61,719.93
Cheques on hand 22,723.57 12,054.93
Cash on hand 2,274.00 9,974.51
Balances as per statement of cash flows 67,709.93 10,33,421.44
Note :

(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as prescribed under Indian Accounting
Standard 7 (Ind AS 7) notified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Previous year's figures have been regrouped,/ recasted wherever necessary.

As per our separate report of even date attached hereto.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Reg. N0.302113E

Sarvesh Kumar Singh . Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No : 069367 DIN-00434020 DIN-0043490¢

ﬁ/{:ﬁ /i?ﬂ/ﬁ fé..r }"Jt"f? ' a)"‘k V\}‘ (/{/{’\MIDK-OAQLL ’

Place : Kolkata ' Lalita Kanta Samal Ginni Lohariwala
Date : Rp-0£.2022_ (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
PAN-AKTPS1391M PAN-AJYPL5486C
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION
KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED bearing CIN - L67020WB1979PLC031867 is a Public Limited Company, listed in Calcutta Stock
Exchange, incorporated in India on February 5,1979 with the name Sreela Chem Industrial Investment Limited. Further on 21st
November 1988, the company amalgamated with Kanak Investments Limited, Semni Valley Investments Private Limited and
Kytharam Investments Private Limited and changed its name to Kanak Projects Limited as per the High Court Order. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 41, Chowringhee Road,Kanak Building, Kolkata 700071.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of renting of immovable properties. Its allied business activity also includes
investing, acquiring, holding or otherwise dealing in shares, stocks and other securities.

The financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022 was approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the company
on 30th June, 2022 and subject to adoption by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 significant Accounting Policies
a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from 1st April, 2016. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.
All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors has been considered
in preparing these financial statements.

b) Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

c) Historical Cost Convention _
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain items which are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, as explained below:
(i) certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;
(i) defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

d) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non - current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained their
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

e) Functional and Presentation Currency
items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
enviroment in which the Company operates (“functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees(Rs.), which is the functional currency of the Company.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

2 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. '
Effective April 1,2018,the Company had applied ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether,how much and when revenue is to be recognised.The Company has
adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative effect method.The impact of adoption of this Standard on the financial statements of
the Company is insignificant

a) Rental Income

Lease rentals are accounted for on accrual basis.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable

interest rate.

Interest income is included under the head “Other Income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established i.e. in case of interim
dividend, on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors; whereas in case of final dividend, on the date of approval
by the shareholders.

d) All other income are accounted for on accrual basis.

b

3 Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

4 Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other irems of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. .
Historical cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of asset, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measure reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

(a) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Freehold Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the written down method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives.
The useful life is taken as per prescribed useful life in Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The asset's residual
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or
loss within other gains/(losses).

5 Investment Property
Investment properties include those portions of land and buildings appurtenant thereto that are held for long-term rental yields
and/or for capital appreciation and properties under operating leases, that is held for long-term capital appreciation or for a
currently indeterminate use but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties like land are initially recognised at cost and investment property like building is recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are also subject to renovations or improvements at
regular intervals. The cost of major renovations and improvements is capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced
components are recognised in profit or loss. The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor improvements is recognised in profit or
loss when incurred.

On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in

profit or loss.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Freehold Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the written down method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The useful life is taken as per prescribed useful life in Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The asset's residual
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

6 Inventories
Securities held as stock-in-trade
a) Securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading positions are considered as Inventories and shown
as current assets.
b) In respect of securities held as inventories, brokerage and stamp duty are written off as revenue expenditure.
¢) The securities held as inventories under current assets are valued at Fair Value using Ind AS 109 - 'Financial Instruments'.

Building held as stock-in-trade

a) Building acquired with the intention of short-term holding ,trading positions and to earn rental income is considered as
Inventories and shown as current assets. -

b) The building held as inventories under current assets is valued at Cost.

7 Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

8 Leases
Effective from 1 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116, which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases
and other interpretations.
The Company at the inception of a contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. Further such lease is classified as
either Financial Lease or Operating Lease:
Financial Lease - Agreements are classified as Financial Leases, if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased asset is transferred to the Lessee.

Operating Lease - Agreements which are not classified as finance leases are considered as operating lease.

a) When the Company is a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Payments received under operating leases are recognized as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a Systematic basis over the lease term.

b) When the Company is a Lessee
ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees where a lessee recognises a right-of-use
(“ROU”) asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. The nature of expenses related to those leases will change as Ind AS 116 replaces the operating lease expense
(i.e., rent) with depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a)

b)

<)

d)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the passage of time is recognized as finance costs.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation as
at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net
of any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognized in the financial statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised
as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

10 Impairment of Assets

a)

b)

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment loss previously recognized is reversed such that the asset is
recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written down value which would have been reported if the
impairment loss had not been recognized.

Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not

fair valued through profit or loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “Other expenses” in the profit or loss. ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount.

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

11 Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognized in Equity or in OCL.

a)

b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to 0CI and Equity are recognized in OCl and in Equity
respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

The amendment in Ind AS 12 regarding the Income Tax uncertainty over Income Tax treatments clarifies the recognition and
measurement requirements when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In assessing the uncertainty, an entity
shall consider whether it is prebable that a taxation authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment.This notification is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning cn or after April 1, 2019. As per the Company’s assessment, there are no
material income tax uncertainties over income tax treatments.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits
or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurcd at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settlec, based on tex rates fand tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. w

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws to the extent it is likely to
give future economic benefits in the form of availability to set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

12 Earnings per Share

a)

b)

c)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could
be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined as at the
end of each period presented. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

wive aquity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for
g ior changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by

The number of equity sharcs «nd potential i
any share split and bonus shaics issues inLioain
the Board of Directors.
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13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance with banks on current
accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and which carry
insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
and net of outstanding book overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

14 Cash Flow Statement . L
Cash flows are reported using the !'n'diréct meth_od,' W'riAereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

15 Employee Benefits
a) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits are recognised as an
expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service is
rendered.

b) Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contributions to defined benefit schemes which are mainly administered through duly constitute
provident Fund contributions are in the nature of defined contribution scheme. Provident funds are deposited with the
Government and recognised as expense.
Post retirement defined benefits i.e gratuity is funded with LICI and are determined through independent acturial valuation.

The service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss on
account of remeasurements are recognised immediately through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur.

16 Financial Instruments .

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial

liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

(A) Financial Assets

(i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
All the financial assets are recognised at Fair vValue on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets,
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash and bank
balances and other financial instruments.

(i) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:
1) Atamortised cost,
2) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
3) At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

(a) Investment in Preference Shares at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
1) The asset is held withina business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

2) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest
rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method.
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(b) Investment in Debentures at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows; and

2) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest
rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method.

(c) Investment in Mutual Funds at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
The investments held in the liquid funds whether being debt or equity instruments, generate cash flows that represent
payments of principal and interest. However, the holder of the liquid fund at it's discretion has the option sell its
investments in order to optimise returns. Therefore, the cash flows paid by the fund to the unit holder comprise
gains/losses on the instruments held by the fund, in addition to interest and principal cash flows from those instruments.

The business model objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling it's financial assets.
Therefore the liquid funds are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

(d) Investment in Equity investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FvTOCI)
All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except in case of investment in associates
which are carried at cost. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis.
All quoted equity instruments are measured at fair value which is determined based on Level-1 inputs that is quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets and last traded prices.
All unguoted equity instruments are measured at fair value by taking into account the financial statements of such
instruments to the extent available to the Company. .
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in OCl.The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when
the relevant equity securities are derecognised.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

(iii) De- Recognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

(B) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortised
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The financial liabilities include security deposits trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, other financial instruments, etc.

(i) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial liabilities are classified through amortised cost.
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
The security deposits are held for collecting the contractual cash flows (i.e. original amount of deposit), which is the
principal amount outstanding (the interest being nil), it meets the criteria for measurement at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

The difference between the fair value of the deposits and the transaction price on initial recognition of the deposit is
accounted for separately as "Pre-received income" shown under the head 'Other Financial Liabilities'. The accounting
treatment for these will depend upon the nature of the element included in the deposits. Had the entity not placed the
deposits with the lessor, the monthly rentals would have been higher. This indicates that the nature of the interest-free
element in these deposits represents a pre-received income. Hence, this difference will be recognised as ‘Pre-received
Income’, which will be amortised to the statement of profit and loss over the life of the deposit on a straight line basis.

The deposits would subsequently be measured at amortised cost, which is computed using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) methpd. The entity should, over the period of the lease/contract, recognise and accrue its amortised cost of
deposits as finance cost caiculated at the rnarket rate of interest for such deposits.
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(c) Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(D) Fair Value Measurement

Eair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Under Ind AS, fair valuation of financial
instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement” .

For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets
and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a
fair value measurement in both cases is the sama to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions(i.e. an exit price at the measurement cGate from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or
owes the liability).

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

NOTE 2 : USE OF CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition would seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment and make certain assumptions in applying the
Company’s accounting policies and preparation of financial statements.

Estimztes and assumptions
In the process of applying the Ccmpany’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have most significant effcci on the arounts w=ceznised in the financial statement.

i) Estimation of Defined benefit obligations _
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan anJ the nresent value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each financial year end.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the
actuary considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

ii) Estimated fair value of unlisted securities
The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets is determined based on the networth of underlying companies.
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standaione Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 4: Investment Property } (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Mﬂ &:ngﬁg&mmi;; b
gg: WW ;w% . -

Freehold Land _

Gross Carrying Amount of Property .

Opening Gross Values _ ' . 4,50,525.00 2,44,770.00
Additions During the Year - 2,05,755.00
Disposals During the Year C - -
Balance at the end of the Year 4,50,525.00 4,50,525.00
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance - -
Depreciation during the year - -
Closing Balance - -
Net Carrying Amount 4,50,525.00 4,50,525.00
Building

Gross Carrying Amount of Property

Opening Gross Values 6,63,747.70 6,63,747.70
Additions During the Year 3,36,355.00 -
Disposals During the Year - -
Balance at the end of the Year 10,00,102.70 6,63,747.70
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance 1,16,067.47 88,503.83
Depreciation during the year 33,133.54 27,563.64
Closing Balance 1,49,201.01 1,16,067.47
Net Carrying Amount 8,50,901.69 5,47,680.23

Total 13,01,426.69 9,98,205.23
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Note 5: Non-Current Investments (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

3 e R
a -
**@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁtﬁ@ém
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- e feia

. zr%ﬁ?%iﬁmx?éggsgmx ;
Investment in Equity Instruments
(A) Quoted Shares (Measured at FVTOCI)
Aditya Birla Capital Ltd. 371 399.38 371 442.60
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Ltd. 920 2,779.32 920 1,851.50
Blue Diamond Sec.Ltd. 23,800 238.00 23,800 238.00
Chennai Meenakshi Multispeciality Hospital 1,000 231.50 1,000 97.40
Digjam Limited 40 76.00 40 1.94
DLX Ltd. 9,77,500 56,108.50 9,77,500 56,108.50
Dunlop India Ltd. 100 1.00 100 1.00
El Forge 50 0.50 50 0.50
Gillandars Aribunates Co. Ltd. 24 15.65 24 9.88
GMMCO Limited 15 0.15 15 0.15
Grasim Industries Ltd. 265 4,409.59 265 3,843.95
Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. 25 86.33 25 78.17
Gujrat Heavy Chemicals Ltd. 500 1,737.75 500 1,147.50
Haileyburia T. E. Ltd. 7,195 1,295.10 7,195 .~ 1,295.10
Hariyana Petrochemicals Ltd. 500 5.00 500 5.00
Himatsingha Seide Ltd. ' 800 1,204.00 800 1,158.80
J.K. Cement Limited 49 1,191.34 49 1,419.66
Jalpac India Ltd. 300 3.00 300 3.00
Kakatiya Textiles Ltd. 1,000 111.50 1,000 6.50
KCP Ltd. 250 289.63 250 209.38
KCP Sugar and Industries 250 62.63 250 36.75
Kilkotagiri & Thirumalai Plant Ltd 4 0.04 4 0.04
Mahindra Gesco Developers Ltd. 2 0.02 2 0.02
Manjushree Plantations Ltd. 600 6.00 600 6.00
Mcleod Russel India 1,314 299.57 1,314 250.96
Methoni Tea Co. Ltd. 400 104.00 400 104.00
Midland Rubber & Produce Co. Ltd. 200 2.00 200 2.00
Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co. Ltd. 100 1.00 100 1.00
Peria Karamalai Tea & Produce Co. Ltd. 328 1,026.64 328 721.28
R.K.Commercial Ltd. 1,08,310 5,415.50 1,08,310 5,415.50
Saurashtra Chemical Ltd. 700 7.00 700 7.00
sunflag Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 755 476.03 755 473.01
Unimers India Limited 75 4.50 75 4.25
United Nilgiri Tea Estates Co. Ltd. 450 1,521.23 450 1,341.46
Uniworth India Ltd. 350 3.50 350 3.50
Vikash WSP Ltd. 1,000 33.50 1,000 59.50
Total (A) 79,146.40 76,344.77
(B) Unquoted Shares
(i) In Associate (Measured at Cost) :
Lao Jan Tea Co.Pvt. Ltd. 8,000 8,000.00 8,000 8,000.00
(ii) In Others (Measured at FVTOCI) : -
purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd. 21,75,000 3,54,908.97 21,75,000 3,26,543.82
Mangalmayee Vypar Pvt Ltd. 2,35,000 23,180.83 2,35,000 23,191.44
Ahinsha Properties Ltd. 19,670 5,35,015.75 19,670 5,06,893.33
Amrita Media Pvt. Ltd. 1,20,000 8,467.73 1,20,000 9,634.67
Metropolitan Stock Exchange Ltd. 1,00,000 591.76 1,00,000 651.37
DataNet Ecommerce Services Ltd. 17,50,000 3,58,536.05 17,50,000 3,50,000.00
Total (B) 12,88,701.10 12,24,914.62
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(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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2) |Inve
1.(Measured at Amortised Cost)
(A) In Associate:
0.1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 85,000 80,030.44 85,000 74,102.24
Laojan Tea Company Private Limited
(B) In Others: -
6% Non Cumulative Non- Convertibie Redeemable 4,00,000 3,66,137.30 7,00,000 6,43,701.80
Preference Shares of DLX Limited.
12% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference 6 0.60 6 0.60
Shares of Farm Enterprises Limited
5% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redeemable - - 60,000 2,79,683.84
Preference Shares of Ahinsha Properties Limited
5% Non Cumulative Non- Convertible Redeemable 1,50,000 1,08,649.77 1,50,000 1,07,671.67
Preference Shares of DataNet Ecommerce Services
Limited
5% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 85,000 61,218.69 85,000 60,667.58
Praks United Ventures Private Limited
8% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 2,50,000 2,50,000.00 2,50,000 2,50,000.00
Jhilik Promoters & Fincom Private Limited
2.(Measured at FVTOCI - -
0.0001% Cumalative Compulsorily Convertible 45 14,850.00 45 14,850.00
Preference Shares of Planys Technologies Pvt Ltd. )
Total (C) 8,80,886.81 14,30,677.73
3) |Investment in Mutual Funds ( Measured at FVTPL)
Kotak Balanced Advantage Fund 20,69,732 2,98,206.91 15,00,000 1,97,670.00
iCICI Pru Small Cap Fund (G) - 2,83,361 1,03,341.86
Religare -Invesco PSU Equity Fund (G) E 2,37,643 57,248.09
Axis Small Cap Fund Reg (G) - 29,595 12,962.41
Invesco India Small Cap Fund Reg (G) - 87,260 13,438.05
ICICI Pru - Business Cycle Fund Reg (G) - 19,99,900 2,10,989.45
ICICI Pru - Technology Fund (G) 59,281 96,384.79 59,281 64,687.30
DSP Floater Fund 14,70,893 1,53,964.21 - -
ICICI Dividend Yield Equity 63,968 17,540.06 - -
ICICI Pru Equity Savings Fund (G) 37,98,165 6,53,284.46 -
ICICI Pru- Floating Interest Fund (G) 20,860 70,369.42 - -
ICICI Pru- Ultra Short Term Fund Reg (G) 8,60,247 1,92,865.09 -
ICICI Pru Strategic Meta & Energy 39,60,113 4,86,792.98 - -
UTI Dividend Yield Plan (G) 15,010 15,889.82 - -
SBI - Savings Fund Reg (G) 20,27,374 6,83,076.98 - -
Franklin India ST Income Segregated 3(9.5% Yes Bank) 889 612.50 889 612.50
Franklin India ST Income Segregated 2(10.9% Vodafone) 747 656.33 - -
Axis Ultra Short Term Fund - - 13,52,397 1,58,150.62
Total (D) 26,69,647.57 8,19,100.29
T}' _—Investment in Debentures(Measured at Amortised Cosx)
1% Unsecured Optionally .Con\n'zrt_;ble Debentures of 4,00,000 4,14,032.75 4,00,000 3,83,504.21
DataNet Ecommerce Services Limited
Total (E) 4,14,032.75 3,83,594.21
5) |Investment in Bonds(Measured at FVTOCI) :
8.99% B.0.B Bonds 40 4,18,980.00 - -
Total(F) 4,18,980.00 -
[ ] TOTAL ( A+B+C+D+E+F) 57,51,394.61 | P 39,34,631.62
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'KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Note 8: Other Non-Current Assets

_Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Equity Shares
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e .
Capital Advances 6,44,587.72 1,90,087.72
Total of Other Non-Current Assets 6,44,587.72 1,90,087.72
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4,46,163.84

3,40,694.36

Total Inventories

3,40,694.36 4,46,163.84

Note 10: Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

T o s L e e T
o T 5 # i e L L S i i
. | Asa jsfgmar&égm; - 1st March,
R a S iL S S 4 Bt . m§ S ¥ B gl B RRmEE.
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S e el e S

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Less: Allowance for Credit Impaired

(c ) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk

3,19,053.06

27,042.78
27,042.78

3,29,676.44

27,042.78
27,042.78

Total Trade Receivables

3,19,053.06

3,29,676.44

Refer Note - 40(i) forTrade Receivabie Ageing Schedule

Note 11: Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Balance with Schedule banks

- On current accounts
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of less than 3 months

12 months
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity more than 12 months

Less:

12 months transferred to Bank Balance(Refer Note-12)
Other Financial Asset(Refer Note-7)

Cheque on hand
Cash on hand

- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than

- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than

- On Fixed Deposits having maturity more than 12 months transferred to

5,94,135.37

10,59,288.71 24,75,936.13

7,11,230.00 230.00

(10,59,288.71) (24,75,936.13)

(7,11,230.00) (230.00)

5,94,135.37
12,054.93
9,974.51

42,712.36
22,723.57
2,274.00

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

67,709.93 6,16,164.81

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash an
prior periods.

d cash equivalents as at the: end of the reporting period and




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

“Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 12: Einancial Assets - Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 5 i::unths but less than 12 10,59,288.71 30,50,968.72
months *
Total

10,59,288.71 30,50,968.72

* Fixed Deposits under lien/pledge ( Refer Note 21 Financial Liabilites- Borrowings)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2022 2021

6,61,719.93
17,70,518.71 23,89,248.79
17,70,518.71 30,50,968.72

- Fixed Deposits under lien/pledge
- Fixed Deposits not under lien/pledge
Total

Note 13: Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net) (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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f Provisi 1,04,181.62 (19,775.71)
Advance Income Tax & TDS (Net of Provision)
iabili 1,04,181.62 (19,775.71)
Total of Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net) ,04,
t (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
Note 14: Other Current assets
i SR e ST L : o L $°vv¢oo e
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IR “QQ‘ SRR S EE e o g 3
s S o s e Gy S e S T 5 21 WMM
. . . ] Asst R M
S = = e am&aggmamm«gﬁ%w i - @i‘x“*“a&\w& S ’“‘&’“" . &“ -
i i S R R o S Ers s . 1
. . . » §
. " §m§ . *§i‘f§§§€@@%§ m&’:;? . L Wéﬁf | *’v\,:waz
i e T

3,978.26 3,785.72
4,066.79 43,543.03
8,045.05 47,328.75

Prepaid Expenses
Advance to Vendors
Total of other non-current assets




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notestnmeslandaloneﬁnanolalsmmmentsasai

Note 15: Equity share capital

and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

: (Amount iﬂf_s.Hundreds}
- . T
e [ ewmsmenzon
 INootsh “No.ofshares | Amount(3)
Authorised Shares
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 50,00,000 5,00,000.00 50,00,000 5,00,000.00
5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares
Equity Shares of T 10/- each fully paid up 44,52,400 4,45,240.00 44,52,400 4,45,240.00
Total 4,45,240.00 4,45,240.00
(a) Reconciliation of shares oustanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting period :
SRS = e
0 A it sl P
Mo nf S e G G S e SE e
_a e e
At the beginning of the year 44,52,400 4,45,240.00 44,52,400 4,45,240.00
Issued during the year - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 44,52,400 4,45,240.00 44,52,400 4,45,240.00

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares :
The company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The holders of Equity Shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of Interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets
of the company after payment of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

(c) Disclosures of Shareholdings by Promoters

Shares Held by Promoters at the end of the year:

s

L e i | e
Mr. Anshuman Prakash 30,27,580 91.37% -
[nir. Nikhil Prakash 15,370 0.46%] -
Ms. Poonam Prakash 53,350 1.61% -
Ms. Radhika Prakash 2,15,850 6.51%! -
Mr. Sudhir Prakash 1,350 0.04% -
Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Private Limited 100 0.003%) -
TOTAL 33,13,600 100.00%) -

— o o Y anges during

“orotsres | wotonishares | MRS
Mr. Anshuman Prakash 30,27,580 91.37% -
Mr. Nikhil Prakash 15,370 0.46%| -
Ms. Poonam Prakash 53,350 1.61% -
Ms. Radhika Prakash 2,15,850 6.51% -
Mr. Sudhir Prakash 1,350 0.04% -
Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Private Limited 100 0.003% -
| TOTAL 33,13,600 100.00% .

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Equ
Mr. Anshuman Prakash *
Anand Vihar Housing Pvt. Ltd.

in the company :

30,27,580
8,96,610

T
o

30,27,580
8,96,610

e
o

L

o

i

e

021
Sapni s ey
- -

s
i i

* Includes 29,70,800 shares held as trust

the Balance Sheet date.

For the period of five years immediately
(i) No Shares have been alloted a
(ii) No Shares have been alloted a
(ii) No Shares has been brought back by the Company

No shares have been reserved for issue under options and contra

s fully paid up pursuan
s fully paid up by way of bonus shares.

ee of Anand Prakash Family Trust.

preceeding the date as at the Balance Sheet is prepared :
t to contract(s) without payment being recived in cash.

cts or commitments for the sale of Shares or divestment as at




- KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 16: Other Equity

GENERAL RESERVE

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

At the beginning and at the end of the ycar

35, 59 863. 17

35.50,863.17

Closing balance

35,59,863.17

35,59,863.17

RETAINED EARNINGS

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Opening balance

Add : Net profit/(loss) for the period

Add : Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (net of Taxes)
Add: Transfer from FVTOCI Reserve

64.22,464.78
4,80,113.03
(970.39)

54,97,915. 34
8,92,343.48
(294.03)
32,500.00

Closing balance

69,01,607.42

64,22,464.78

FVTOCI RESERVE

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Openlng balance 2,91,569.67 1,22,404‘69
Net Gain/(Loss) on FVTOCI Investments 66,925.14 2,01,664.98
Less:Transfer to Retained Earning on Sale of Unquoted Equity Investment (32,500.00)
Closing balance 3,58,494.81 2,91,569.67

TOTAL OF OTHER EQUITY

1,08,19,965.41

1,02,73,897.62

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

General Reserve

General Reserve is created and will be utilised in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent accumulated profits/(losses) earned by the Company and remaining undistributed as on date.

FVTOCI Equity Investments
The Company has elected to recognise changes ii

the fzir value of certain investments in equity instruments through other

comprehensive income. These changes are accurnulzied within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve. The Company
transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standa!_one Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Note 17: Non Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

E S

at 31st March,

o
o

S e e
3 g i 2
. 20

Secured

Vehicle Term Loan from Bank* 18,393.36 24,567.51
Less: Current Maturity of Term Loan (6,679.95) (6,174.15)

Total Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 11,713.41 18,393.36

*secured by hypothecation of vehicles financed

Repayment Schedule of Vehicle Loan

Patriculars 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025

Loan Amount Due to be Repaid 6,679.95 7,227.18 4,486.22

Note 18: Financial Liabilities - Other financial liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Note 19: Deferred Tax (Net)

R
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SR
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Security Deposits from tenants 1,92,839.98 1,73,240.96
Total Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities 1,92,839.98 1,73,240.96
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

st

=
LBty ol
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t March

. . . - . % %§§§§§§%‘&mi§§§§§g§% o .
Difference between Accounting base and Tax base of Assets and Liabilities 51,814.54 (7,019.34)
Add : Deferred tax accounted for the year (23,013.27) 58,833.88
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (Net) 28,801.27 51,814.54

NOTE 19(A) : DEFERRED TAX RECONCILIATION

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2022 2021

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Fair Valuation of Other Asset and Liability 1,58,440.18 1,20,896.91

Total 1,58,440.18 1,20,896.91

Deferred Tax Assets:

Fair Valuation of Other Asset and Liability 23,786.92 39,028.40

Property Plant and Equipment 13,124.54 15,735.27

Emplyee Benefits - Gratuity 3,829.45 2,655.04

Provision for Expenses 88,898.00 11,663.67

Total 1,29,638.90 69,082.37
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (Net) 28,801.27 51,814.54

NOTE 19(B) : RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE ON THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS 2022 2021
Profit / (loss) before Tax 5,73,146.84 11,92,449.84
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company's Tax Rate 1,44,249.60 3,00,115.77
Tax Effect of:
Exempt Income, net of disallowances (77,093.41) (60,439.66)
Income chargeable under different rates (24,993.26) (36,538.86)
permanent Differences 13,583.62 27,413.60
Other Temporary Differences (28,722.71) 13,919.68
Other Non Deductible Expenses 83,750.95 55,635.81
Income Tax for Earlier Year (17,740.98) -
Tax Expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss 93,034.30 3,00,106.35




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 20: Other Non-Current liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

 PARTICULARS
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air valuation of security deposit

Pre-
Advance against Property

1,04,188.57

5,019.97

43,669.99

Total of Other Non-Current Liabilities

1,09,208.54

1,65,807.76

Note 21: Financial liabilities - Borrowings

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Secured
Working Capital Loan from Axis Bank

Secured against the pledge/lien of Fixed deposit of the said bank**

Current Maturity on Long term Borrowings- Vehicle Loan

6,679.95

2,44,463.29
6,174.15

Total Current Borrowings

6,679.95

2,50,637.44

** Secured against Fixed Deposit taken from Axis Bank Kolkata (WB).The period of renewal is 12 months and the effective return is

7.50 % p.a. (Refer Note 12 - Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents)

Note 22: Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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S

re paables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 9,080.43 -
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 49,355.61 42,430.35
Total Trade Payables 58,436.04 42,430.35

Refer Note - 47 for Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Disclosure of Micro, Small and Medium Enterpr
T
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(i) Principal mount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

9,080.43 NIL
year.
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the NIL NIL
accounting year.
(iii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of! NIL NIL
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment. NIL NIL
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting NIL NIL
year.
(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small

NIL NIL




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financiai Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 23: Other Financial liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Security Deposits from tenants
Other Advances

Liability for Capital Goods

4,632.50
3,292.50
8,448.11

3,875.25
3,292.50
12,171.67
6,972.00

Total Other Financial Liabilities

16,373.11 26,311.42

Note 24: Other Current liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

s :

. e . L

Pre- received rent on account of fair valuation of security deposit 18,811.62 19,220.96

Statutory Dues 16,494.94 15,584.45

Interest Accrued and not due on Borrowings 101.56 135.65

Total Other Current Liabilities 35,408.13 34,941.07

Mote 25: Provisions (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
EmEmEREe R - -
. DARTIC o

Employee Benefit- Gratuity
Provision for Rates & Taxes

15,215.54
3,53,218.40

10,549.26
46,343.24

Total Provisions

3,68,433.94 56,892.50




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Stateizents as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 26: Revenue from Operations

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

. -

Rental Income“ 5,08,228.86 5,72,805.21
Sale of Properties 1,89,114.70
Sale of Shares 3,50,445.06 9,69,664.76
Sale of Billets 6,87,509.31 10,02,695.21
Other Operating Revenue:

-License Fees Received 8,731.50 7,333.50
Total Revenue from Operations 16,54,914.73 27,41,613.38
* Includes Rental Income on account of Fair Valuation of Security Deposit amounting to ¥ 19,297.26/- (P.Y.

% 30,095.18/-)

Note 27: Other Income

{Amount in Rs. Hundreds}

Interest
- On Loans 66,137.77 1,73,781.31
- On Fixed Deposits 86,624.40 2,12,552.41
- On Debentures 37,989.59 986.30
- On Others 352.00 420.00
- On account of Fair Valuation of Investments in Preference

Shares as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. 47,689.49 96,199.56
- On account of Fair Valuation of Investments in ~ Debentures as
per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. 30,438.54 7,976.44
Dividend Income 4,144.60 2,261.01
Profit on Redemption of Preference Shares 2,519.59 21,568.01
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 1,40,951.98 2,46,769.72
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments - 8,440.07
Profit on Future and Option 7,582.16 20,036.52
Share of Profit from Partnership Firm - 4,031.90
Profit on Sale of Securities(Equity Share) 45,805.94 6,291.39
Compensation Towards Lease Termination 1,43,554.24
Miscellaneous Income 57,570.24 70,118.42
Fair Value Gain on Financial Instruments 1,91,674.78 1,44,378.89
Total Other Income 7,19,481.07 11,59,366.19

Note 28: Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Purchase of Securities 1,36,500.68 12,59,087.71
Purchase of Billets 6,43,534.83 9,78,092.09
Total Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 7,80,035.50 22,37,179.80

Note 29: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in- Progress

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Inventorles at the Beglnmng of the year

Securities 4,46,163.85 56,370.63
Properties - 1,32,665.24
Inventories at the End of the year

Securities 3,40,694.36 4,46,163.84
Properties - -
Changes in Inventories 1,05,469.48 (2,57,127.97)

Note 30: Employee Benefit Expense

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 69,022.63 61 886 06
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 6,319.30 4,989.69
Director Remuneration 94,300.00 85,500.00
Staff Welfare Expenses 24,952.50 6,523.09
Total Employee Benefit Expense l) 1,94,594.43 1,58,898.84
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 31: Finance Cost (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
. SAstiViarcn, suss 3151 Iviar ;::}5 Uz

Interest on Worklng Capltal Loan 600.29 40,305.81
Interest on Vehicle Loan 1,686.32 . 992.56
Finance Cost on account of Fair Valuation of Security Deposit 15,677.74 24,569.98
Interest on Rates and Taxes 1,188.38 1,593.14
Total Finance Cost 19,152.73 67,461.49
Note 32: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
. 3 éit?ﬁ%_i@ f“
Depreciation on

- Property, plant and equipment 42,201.81 30,726.87

- Investment property 33,133.54 27,563.64
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 75,335.35 58,290.51
Note 33: Other Expenses (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

ts:§:ig§g¥icum

Loss on Falr Valuatton of Investment in Preference Share B - 1,23,097.99
Loss on Fair Valuation of Investment in Debentures - 24,382.23
Rent,Rates & Taxes 3,12,804.02 57,438.21
Insurance 2,496.16 1,598.98
Repairs to Building 1,61,939.49 67,273.43
Repairs to Plant & Machinery 3,785.12 4,077.28
Repairs to Others 4,741.52 4,132.06
Bad Debts - 3,472.00
Office Expenses 6,760.28 3,618.12
Motor Car Running & Maintenance Expenses 10,690.02 6,475.17
Donations & Charity(including Corporate Social Responsibility) 25,000.00 46,000.00
Brokerage & Commission - 5,130.00
Advertisement & Publicity 6,105.45 9,745.22
Security Services 12,322.04 10,557.83
Printing & Stationery 958.95 986.32
Electrical Charges 13,786.33 7,090.20
Communication Expenses 1,880.23 1,866.79
Legal & Professional Fees 47,293.12 30,415.53
Auditor's Remuneration :

- As Statutory Audit Fees 3,500.00 3,500.00
- As Tax Audit Fees 300.00 . 500.00
Travelling and Conveyance 3,155.80 3,400.30
Miscellaneous Expenses 4,335.55 3,571.74
Sundry Balances Written off 3,940.21 25,497.66
Director Sitting Fees : 220.00 -
Share Speculation Loss . 647.18
Total Other Expenses 6,26,661.47 4,43,827.05

Ny =
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS :-

34 Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sa le.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The financial instruments are catagorized into
three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarch\r for assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2022 : pq.mgum in Rs.Hundreds)

e
Exf*w&g;éﬁz??%g:i;; &32&5“%%5‘3::5 .
msﬁw eE"" ﬂémmf
Assets measured at fair value:
Investments at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI) 5
Investments in Quoted equity shares 79,146.40 79,146.40 - -
lInvestments in Unquoted equity shares 12,88,701.10 - - 12,88,701.10
Investments in Bonds 4,18,980.00 - 4,18,980.00 -
Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 14,850.00 - - 14,850.00
Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 5
Investments in Mutual Funds 26,69,647.57 - 26,69,647.57 -
Investments at Amortised Cost 5
Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 8,66,036.81 - - 8,66,036.81
Investments in Debentures 5 4,14,032.75 - - 4,14,032.75
TOTAL 57,51,394.62 79,146.40 30,88,627.57 25,83,620.65
Liabilities measured at fair value at amortised 18
Interest-free Security Deposit 1,96,132.48 - - 1,96,132.48
TOTAL 1,96,132.48 - - 1,96,132.48

Quantltatwe disclosures falr value rneasurement hierarchy for assets and liabil

ities as at 31st March, 2021 : {Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

*N% ‘,\&gggg‘éﬁ"‘“‘% = R »x gg%ﬁégiiﬁéi:gm . M«ég‘“\’gg%g«;;_

”‘“glﬁ*@ P observable | _ significant

Assets measured at fa:r value:

Investments at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI) 5

Investments in Quoted equity shares 76,344.77 76,344.77 - -

Investments in Unquoted equity shares 12,24,914.62 - - 12,24,914.62

Investments in Ungquoted Preference Shares 14,850.00 - - 14,850.00

Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 5

Investments in Mutual Funds 8,19,100.29 - 8,19,100.29 -

Investments at Amortised Cost

Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 14,15,827.73 14,15,827.73

Investments in Debentures 5 3,83,594.21 3,83,594.21

Investments in Bonds - - - -
TOTAL 39,34,631.61 76,344.77 8,19,100.29 30,39,186.65

Liabilities measured at fair value at amortised

Interest-free Security Deposit 18 1,76,533.46 - - 1,76,533.46
TOTAL 1,76,533.46 - - 1,76,533.46

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended 31st March, 2022 or 31st March, 2021.

35 Earning Per Equity Share ( Ind AS 33)

{Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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. Net profit after tax avai1able for Equity Shareholders B

4,80,113.03 8,92,343.48
(b) Weighted average no. of equity shares of % 10/- each outstanding during the year 44,52,400 44,52,400
10.78 20.04

(c) Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (a)/(b)

/7




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

36 Related Party Disclosure:

in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 24 :

oF
Key Management Personnel 1 Sudhir Prakash, Managing Director
2 Anshuman Prakash, Director
3 Neelima Jain, Director
4 Nikhil Prakash, Director
5 Sidhant Prakash, Director
6 Nitin Kandoi, Independent Director
7 Princey Kandoi, Independent Director
8 Lalita Kanta Samal, Chief Financial Officer
9 Ginni Lohariwala, Company Secretary
Enterprises Owned or Significantly Influenced by 10 DLX Ltd
Key Managerial Personnel , or their Relatives 11 Amrita Media Pvt. Ltd
12 Megapix Strips & Tubes Pvt. Ltd.
13 Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Pvt. Ltd
14 Barsana Farms Pvt Ltd
15 Arihant Solvex Pvt. Ltd
16 Purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd
Associate Company 17 Laojan Tea Company Private Ltd.
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
a1 . . . Ason |  AsOn .
No. |NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY ~ TRANSACTION | 3% March,2022 | 31st March,2021
1|Purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd Loan Given - 17,772.03
Loan Repaid - 2,50,000.00
Interest 40,247.54 1,35,278.01
Interest receivable - 70,777.29
Closing Balance of Loan 10,13,221.87 10,13,221.87
License Fees Received 900.00 900.00
Sale of Billets 6,87,509.31 10,02,695.21
2 |DLX Ltd tLcan Given - 1,55,000.00
{Loan Repaid - 2,36,325.27
Interest 9,834.47 12,081.34
Closing Balance of Loan 1,18,122.91 1,09,271.89
Purchase of Preference Shares - 4,00,000.00
Redemption of Preference Shares 3,00,000.00
Advance Given 31,135.93 11,095.40
Refund Of Advance 27,235.33 15,000.00
3 |Arihant Solvex Pvt. Ltd Interest 12,743.43 6,380.39
Loan Given 60,000.00 37,500.00
Closing Balance of Loan 1,60,732.83 89,263.74
4 |Amrita Media Pvt. Ltd Reimbursement Receivable 5,023.24 3,373.24
5 |Barsana Farms Pvt Ltd License Fees Received 240.00 240.00
6 |Megapix Strips & Tubes Pvt. Ltd. Loan Outstanding 1,58,554.14 1,43,911.18
Interest - 14,642.96
7 |Ginni Lohariwala Salary 1,800.00 750.00
8 |Nitin Kandoi Director Sitting Fees 110 -
9 |Princey Kandoi Director Sitting Fees 110 -
10 |Anshuman Prakash Directors Remuneration 30,900.00 28,500.00
11 |Nikhil Prakash Dirzcrors Remuneration 32,500.00 28,500.00
: 12 |Sidhant Prakash :Direétor-: Remuneraticn 30,900.00 28,500.00




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

37 POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (IND AS -i2 )
Defined Benefit Plans As Per Acturial Valuation
Gratuity ( funded by the Company )
The scheme is funded and the fund is lying with LICI. The company has provided with the balance of the fund as at 01.04.2021
and 31.03.2022 and the information relating to the contribution made and the benefits paid out and interest earned during the
period from 01.04.2021 to 31.03.2022
Determination of acturial assumption depend on various factors such as the company's internal commercial and business plan,
various industry factors, applicable economics factors, internal HR related policies (including and changes thereto), regulatory

factors, etc .
Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may very

overtime. Thus, the company is exposed to various risk in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate Risk : The plan exposes the company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rate will result in an
increase in ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown

in financial statements).
Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the company is not able to meet the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-

availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of liquid asset not being sold in time.

ation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of

Salary Escal
future for plan participants from the rate of increase in

plan participants in future. Derivation in the rate of increase of salary in
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plans's liability.

Demographic Risk : The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of liability. The company is
exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordence with the requirements of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. There is a
risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts.
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITY (BALANCE SHEET POSITION)

e

rch,

Present value of obligation 5,121.1

Fair Value of Plan Asset 19,905.59 18,237.76
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - ' -
Effects of Asset Ceiling - -
Net Asset / (Liability) (15,215.54) (10,549.26)

Discontinuance Liability 35,132.28 28,842.14
Present Value of Obligation 35,121.13 28,787.02
Ratio ( Present Value of Obligation / Discontinuance Liability ) 1.00 1.00

(i) Details of funded post retirement are as follows:
a. Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

e 0 o anmes R T S
Current service Cost 2,035.95
Loan / (Gain) on settlement - -

Net Interest Cost 659.33 560.07
Benefit Cost (Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss) 2,872.06 2,596.02




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

b. Other Compre

i

.
S
EREEESESS

Acturial gain/Loss on Obligation due to :

- change in demographic assumpptions

- change in financial asumptions 66.06 65.66
- experience variencre (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions ) 2,256.13 1,080.84
- others -

Return/loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (201.08) (235.59)
Components Of defined Benefit Cest Recognigq’_!g Other Compresive Income 2,121.11 910.91

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

March,2022 | 31stMarch,2021

28,787.02 26,561.73

Current Service cost 2,212.73 2,035.95
Interest Cost 1,799.19 1,673.39
Curtailment Cost/(credit) - -
Settlement cost/(credit) - -
Employee contribution -
Past Service Cost -
Acquisitions -

|Re-measurement (or Actuarial (gains)/Losses) Arising from
-change in demographic assumption - -
-change in financial assumptions 66.06 65.66
-experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 2,256.13 1,080.84
-others - -
Benefits paid ) - (2,630.55)
Present Value of DBO at end of veriod o 35,121.13 28,787.02
(Am

18,237.76 17,671.70

Investment Income 1,139.86 1,113.32
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding amount recognised in Net Interest Expenses 201.08 235.59
Actual Company Contributions 326.89 1,847.70

Fund Transferred -
Employee contributions -

Benefits paid - (2,630.55)
Plan assets at end of period 19,905.59 18,237.76

T

e o - S
S S e Sladt e

S

i

unded Status

22

(Amount in Rs.H ndreds)

Present value of Defined Benefit Obliagtion 35,121.13 28,787.02
Fair Value of plan assets ' 19,905.59 18,237.76
Funded Status [surplus/Deficit] (15,215.54) (10,549.26)
Effect of balancesheet asset limit - -

Unrecognised past service cost - -

Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet (10,549.26)
Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet at the beginning of period (10,549.26) (8,890.03)
Expenses recognised in Income Statement 2,872.06 2,596.02
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2,121.11 910.91
Employer Contribution 326.89 1,847.70

Net Acquisition / Business contributions (]

Net asset/(libility) recognised in balance sheet at the end of period h

(15,215.54)

(10,549.26)

S
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

f. Major Categories of plan Assets as % of Total Plan Assets

G
s s»3§

| 31st March,.

s

Fund Managed by Insurer

TOTAL

g. Maturity Proflle of Defined Bene flt Obhgatlo
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1 years 17,409.41 10,591.62
Between 2 to 5 years 8,300.86 10,192.65
Between 6 to 10 years 9,014.55 8,805.74
More Than 10 Years 11,995.93 11,194.10

The avearage duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of

. 4 years 5 years
balancesheet date (in years)

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds}

h. Sensitivity Analysn

T aIMawch, 20220 | s Manch, 20200 on |
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 33,862.85 36,518.99 27,538.84 30,179.02
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity -3.58% 3.98% -4.340% 4.840%
Salary Growth(-/+1%) 36,554.60[ 33,808.37 30,216.41 27,482.88
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 4.08% -3.74% 4.970% -4.530%
Attrition Rate (-/+ 50%) 35,140.93! 35,098.98 28,811.48 28,759.53
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 0.06% -0.06% 0.080% -0.100%
Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 35,125.79| 35,116.33 28,792.44 28,781.43
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 0.01% -0.01% 0.020% -0.020%

(ii) Details of unfunded post retirement defined benefit obligation are as follows:

a leslon of Defmed Benefit Obligation (Current / Non-

S

currrent) at the end of the period

T
o

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

s | PAmticutaRs 0 ] 31stMarch 2022
Current define beneflt 0b|lgatt0ﬂ 17,409.41 10,591.62
Non-current define benefit obligation 17,711.72 18,195.40
Total defined benefit obligation 35,121.13 28,787.02
b. Best Estimate Of Contribution During Next Year 17,443.85 | 12,573.95
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- ACCOUNTING, CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

38 Financial Instruments by category

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Fmanciai Assets
(a) |Investments * 5 57,51,394.61 26,69,647.57 17,93,677.49 12,80,069.56 57,43,394.62
(b) |Trade and other Receivables 10 3,29,676.44 - - 3,29,676.44 3,29,676.44
(c) |Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 67,709.93 - - 67,709.93 67,709.93
(d) Bank Balances other than Cash 12 10,59,288.71 - - 10,59,288.71 10,59,288.71
and Cash Equivalents
(e) |Loans 6 14,76,978.05 - - 14,76,978.05 14,76,978.05
(f) |Other financial assets 7 8,86,825.66 8,86,825.66 8,86,825.66
Total 95,71,873.40 26,69,647.57 17,93,677.49 51,00,548.35 95,63,873.41
2 | Financial Liabilities
(a) |Borrowings 17&21 18,393.36 - - 18,393.36 18,393.36
(b) |Trade and other Payables 22 49,355.61 - - 49,355.61 49,355.61
(c) |Other Financial Liabilities 18& 123 2,09,213.09 - - 2,09,213.09 2,09,213.09
Total 2,76,962.05 - - 2,76,962.05 2,76,962.05

* Excludes investments measured at cost .

{Amount m Rs.Hundreds)
Bl (L

;&ii‘ﬁae alue

 EVIOC

Financial Assets

(a) |Investments * 5 39,34,631.61 8,19,100.29 13,08,109.39 17,99,421.94 39,26,631.61
(b) [Trade and other Receivables 10 3,19,053.06 3,19,053.06 3,19,050.36
(c) |Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 6,16,164.81 - - 6,16,164.81 6,16,164.81
(d) Bank Balances other than Cash 12 30,50,968.72 - - 30,50,968.72 30,50,968.72
and Cash Equivalents

(e) |Loans 6 14,15,416.41 - - 14,15,416.41 14,15,416.41
(f) |Other financial assets 7 3,89,551.57 - - 3,89,551.57 3,89,551.57

Total 97,25,786.18 8,19,100.29 13,08,109.39 75,90,576.51 97,17,783.48

2 | Financial Liabilities

(a) |Borrowings 17 & 21 2,69,030.80 2,69,030.80 2,69,030.80
(b) |Trade and other Payables 22 42,430.35 - - 42,430.35 42,430.35
(c) |Other Financial Liabilities 18 & 23 1,99,552.38 - - 1,99,552.38 1,99,552.38

Total 5,11,013.53 - - 5,11,013.53 5,11,013.53

* Excludes investments measured at cost .

39 Dlsclosure in respect of Contingent Liability and Capital Commitment:

Mmount in Rs Hundreds}
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i) Capnal omm:ment (Net of Advance paid )

20 500 00

(b) Income Tax

i) Assessment Year 2013-2014 , the company has filed an appeal with C.I.T. (Appeal) against a demand of %15,849.20 (Net of Paid under protest of2

5,000.00 /-)

ii) Assessment Year 2017-2018 , the company has filed an appeal with C.1.T. (Appeal) against an Income Tax Order of 33,744.18 (Net of Paid under

protest of % 8,436.05 /-)
(c) Municipal Tax

The Company has preferred an appeal before the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court against the Order of Kolkata Municipal Corporation in respect of
retrospective revision of Annual Valuation of the Property and raised a demand of 240, 43,005.61/- against which the Company has paid %9,12,159.36/-
. However, the said proceeding are still pending before the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court. The Company expects no material-liability towards the same.
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40 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities includes Borrowings, Trade payable and Other financial liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include Securities,
Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents and Other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The senior management
provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below :

(a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The Company's activities expose itto a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in interest rates.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Any changes in the interest rates environment may impact future cost of borrowings. The interest rate risk is
managed by the Company by monitoring monthly cash flows which is reviewed by management to prevent loss of interest.

The following table demonstrates the borrowings of the Company:
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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Vehicle Loan 18,393.36

Working Capital Loan - 2,44,463.29
Total 18,393.36 2,69,030.80

Sensitivity Analysis :
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that portion of borrowings
affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit before tax and equity before tax is affected, as

follows:
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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+0.5% (870.99) (870.99)

31st March, 2022 -0.5% 870.99 870.99
As at +0.5% (1,365.00) (1,365.00)

31st March, 2021 - 0.5% 1,365.00 1,365.00

(i) Price risk
The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted, mutual fund and bonds and
classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The Company is not
expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.

The table below sets forth the fair value of quoted investments in securities of listed companies and mutual funds :
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
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e s .
e e . e
o : L = S e e
. = b

_ paRml UtAR @ - . a0
. Q“?”“mw”m%wfi’;&%”%ﬁﬁ%? . 2022 ] 31t Mareh 20
Investments in Quoted Equity Shares (at FVTOCI) 79,146.40 76,344.77
Investments in Mutual Funds (at FVTPL) 26,69,647.57 8,19,100.29
Investments in Bonds (at FvTOCI) A & 4,18,980.00 -
TOTAL ) 31,67,773.96 8,95,444.56
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE 48: Information about Operating Segment for the Current Year 2021-22 (IND AS - 108)

Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment including
inter segment transfers. Inter segment transfers are accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to

between the segments.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a
whole and are not allocable to segments on direct and/or on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as

“Unallocable”.
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
PARTICULARS Rental Income | Billets Sale | Unallocated Total (%)
REVENUE
Revenue 6,16,960.36 6,87,509.31 3,50,445.06 16,54,914.73
Other Income 57,570.24 - 6,61,910.83 7,19,481.07

Total Revenue

6,74,530.60

6,87,509.31

10,12,355.89

23,74,395.80

RESULTS

Segment Result 31,910.62 (24,590.17) 5,84,979.11 5,92,299.56
Finance Cost 19,152.73
Profit Before Tax 5,73,146.84
Current Tax 1,39,497.50
Deferred Tax (28,722.71)
Income Tax for Earlier Year (17,740.98)
Profit After Tax 4,80,113.03
Other Information
Segment Assets 13,62,582.57 3,40,704.55 | 1,03,89,812.63 | 1,20,93,099.75

Total Asset

1,20,93,099.75

Segment Liabilities

7,19,259.14

1,08,635.21

8,27,894.35

Total Liabilities

8,27,894.35

Information about Operating Segment for the Previous Year 2020-21:

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

PARTICULARS Rental Income | BilletsSale | Unallocated Total (X)
REVENUE
Revenue 5,80,138.71 10,02,695.21 11,58,779.46 27,41,613.38

Other Income

2,13,672.66

9,45,693.52

11,59,366.18

Total Revenue

7,93,811.37

10,02,695.21

21,04,472.99

35,00,979.56

RESULTS

Segment Result 5,65,980.52 (24,137.66) 7,18,068.48 12,59,911.34
Finance Cost 67,461.49
Profit Before Tax 11,92,449.85
Current Tax 2,92,473.50
Deferred Tax 7,632.87

iIncome Tax for Earlier Year

Profit After Tax

8,92,343.48

Other Information

Segment Assets

10,71,515.23

3,54,209.99

1,01,33,657.52

1,15,59,382.73

Total Asset

1,15,59,382.73

Segment Liabilities

4,49,866.25

3,90,378.84

8,40,245.09

Total Liabilities

8,40,245.09




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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59

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules.

The Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies
Act,2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the period ending 31st March, 2022 and also for the
period ending 31st March, 2021.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or any other entity.

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, for the current and
previous year.

The Company has complied with number of layers as prescribed under clause-87 of section 2 of the Companies
Act,2013 read with Companies Rule,2017.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year and previous year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current year and
previous year .

Utilisation Of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

A) The Company has not advanced, loaned or invested funds(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities(Intermediaries) with the
understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall-

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

i) provide any guarantee or security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

So, required disclosure with respect to the above is not applicable.

B)The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities(Funding
Party) with the understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall-

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

ii) provide any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

So, required disclosure with respect to the above is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19-The Company has taken into account all
the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited to its
assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption, the recoverability of property plant and equipment,
receivables, intangible assets, cash and cash equivalent and investments. The Company has carried out this
assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of these
financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and
expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements owing to the nature and
duration of COVID-19.

Previous year/period figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to make them
comparable with those of current year.

~
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore
To The Members of KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), and its associate, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the holding company and its associate as at March 31,
2022, and their consolidated Profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our respensibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Holding Company and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated ind AS Financia! Statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion cn these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the ind AS Finciicial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board ot Directors ic responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not inciude the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. ZoORA &

“
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Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statement.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a
true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Holding Company and its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and in its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Holding Company and its associate for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and it’s associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Holding Company and its associate
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Holding Company and
its associate or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Holding Company and its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis
of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Holding Company and its associate to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Holding Company and its
associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Holding Company and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement of
which we are independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are independent auditors regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Others Matters

(a) The consolidated financial statements also include the company’s share of net Loss of Rs.27,681/- for the year
ended 31° March, 2022, as considered in the ccnsolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate,
whose financial statements/financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements/
financial information have been audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consoiidated financia! statements, in so far as it relates tc the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of
section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the report of the
other auditor.(Figures in Hundred)

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(3) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of vur knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes ot our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditor of its asscciate company, none of the directors of the Holding Company and its
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associate is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure —A”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Holding Company and its associate [Refer Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements].

(i) The Holding Company and its associate did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its associate companies.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(iv) (b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year. Hence, compliance in
accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

For SALARPURIA AND PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E)

UDTN'! 22663236+ ANSAHRHALS
Place : Kolkata
Date: Qo0.0.2672.2
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ANNEXURE "A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended 31st March, 2022, we have audited the internal financials control over financial reporting of
KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its associate Companies,
which are incorporated in India as on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the company and its associate company, which are incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAlI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor, in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and-appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonahle assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its associate Company, which is incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31°* March, 2022, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to one associate company, which is a
Company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such Company,
incorporated in India.

For SALARPURIA AND PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E)

UDIN: 2206936 TANSAHHT 8Ly

Place: Koikata
Date: 3¢ 0C. 2090




KANAK PROJECS LInIITED
CIN : £67020W2879PLC031867

Consolidated Balance Sheet a3 at 31st March, 2022

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

(1) |Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,22,290.90 1,51,810.99
(b) Investment Property 4 13,01,426.69 9,98,205.23
(€) Financial assets
i. Investments 5 60,34,370.70 42,45,289.12
ii. Loans 6 10,13,221.87 10,13,221.87
iii. Other financial assets 7 7,29,347.04 18,951.07
(d) Other non-current assets 8 6,44,587.72 1,90,087.72
Total non-current assets 98,45,244.92 66,17,566.00
(2) |Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 3,40,694.36 4,46,163.84
(b) Financial assets
i. Trade Receivables 10 3,29,676.44 3,19,053.06
il. Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 67,709.93 6,16,164.81
iii. Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 10,59,288.71 30,50,968.72
iv. Loans 6 4,63,756.18 3,83,473.47
v. Other financial assets 7 1,57,478.63 3,89,321.57
(c)  Current Tax Asset (net) 13 1,04,181.62 -
(d)  Other current assets 14 8,045.05 47,328.75
Total current assets 25,30,830.92 52,52,474.23
Total assets (1+2) 1,23,76,075.85 1,18,70,040.23

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes

The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statement

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.302113E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(a) |EQuUITY
(a) Equity share capital 15 4,45,240.00 4,45,240.00
(b) Other equity 16 1,11,02,941.54 1,05,84,555.13
Total equity 1,15,48,181.54 1,10,29,795.13
(B) |LIABILITIES
(1) |Non-current liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowing 17 11,713.41 18,393.36
ii. Other financial liabilities 18 1,92,839.98 1,73,240.96
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 28,801.27 51,814.54
(c) Other Non- Current liabilities 20 1,09,208.54 1,65,807.76
Total non-current liabilities 3,42,563.18 4,09,256.61
(2) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 21 6,679.95 2,50,637.44
ii. Trade Payables:-
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 9,080.43 -
(B) total outst.andlng dues of creditors other than nicro enterprises and 2 49,355.61 42,43035
small enterprises.
ii. Other financial liabilities 23 16,373.11 26,311.42
(b) Current Tax Liability (net) 13 - 19,775.71
(c)  Other current liabilities 24 35,408.13 34,941.07
(d)  Provisions 25 3,68,433.94 56,892.50
Total current liabilities 4,85,331.17 4,30,988.48
Total liabilities (1+2) 8,27,894.35 8,40,245.10
Total equity and liabilities (A+B) _ 1,23,?6,0?&_ 1,18,70,040.23

Gt

Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
(Managing Director) (Director)
DIN-00434020 DIN-00434909

n
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A e

Lalita Kanta Samal
(Chief Financial Officer)

PAN-AKTP51391M

Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Partner
Membership No : 069367 Ginni Lohariwala

(Company Secretary)

Place : Kolkata PAN-AJYPL5486C

Date : 30-0{-202.2..




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN : L67020WB1979PLC031867

Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022

I. |Revenue
Revenue from Operations

Other Income
Total Income (l)
Il. |Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade
Employee Benefit Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses (1)
111, |Profit/(loss) before tax (I-11)
IV. |Share of Profit/(Loss) from Associates (net of tax)
V. |Profit/(loss) before tax (I-11)
VI. |Income tax expense
- Current tax

- Deferred tax

Income Tax For Earlier Year
Total tax expense (IV)
VII. |Profit for the year (V-VI)
VIil. |Other Comprehensive Income
A(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity instruments
Remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
obligations

Share of Other Comprehensive Income from ~ssociates
A(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

Profit or Loss

B(i) Items that will be reclassifies to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments

B(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
Profit or Loss

(loss) and other comprehensive income for the period)
X. |Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted

IX. |Total Comprehensive Income for the period (V + VI) (comprising profit

26
27

28
29
30
31
32
33

36

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

16,54,914.73
7,19,481.07

27,41,613.38
11,59,366.18

23,74,395.80 39,00,979.56

7,80,035.50
1,05,469.48

22,37,179.80
(2,57,127.97)

1,94,594.43 1,58,898.84
19,152.73 67,461.49
75,335.35 58,290.51
6,26,661.47 4,43,827.05
18,01,248.96 27,08,529.68
5,73,146.84 11,92,449.88
(27,681.39) (36,771.15)
5,45,465.45 11,55,678.73

1,39,497.50 2,92,473.50

(28,722.71) 7,632.87
(17,740.98) -
93,033.81 3,00,106.37

4,52,431.64

8,55,572.36

66,588.10 2,53,482.87

(2,121.11) (910.91)

(4,886.08) (51,201.01)
7,197.20 .
(823.36) -

5,18,386.39 10,56,943.31

10.16 19.22

Significant Accounting Policies And Other Notes
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statement
As per our separate report of even date attached.
For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.302113E

N ny

Sarvesh Kumar Singh

Partner , / ! 0 {/0/{/\@&'&9&/6‘
5 . il - y ¢ f'r_ \ / ) \
Membership No 06?3.6_?:'”— . /( ‘ {ﬂ ‘)_/; /,-\ ¢ ,'}/[‘ Je7} 4 WA

Place : Kolkata

Date : 30.05‘2029_ -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lalita Kanta Samal

(Chief Financial Officer)
PAN-AKTP51391M

Sudhir Prakash
(Managing Director)
DIN-00434020

Anshuman Prakast

(Director)
DIN-00434909

Ginni Lohariwala
(Company Secretary)
PAN-AJYPL5486C
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the vear ended 31st March, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Dividend on Investments
Bad Debt
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Mutual Fund
(Profit)/Loss from Partnership Firm
(Profit)/Loss from Sale of Motor Car
Finance costs
Net Gain on Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Interest Received
Income from Operating Activities before changes in Operating Assets and Taxes
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivaties
(increase)/Decrease in Loans- Curreni _
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets- Current
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities-Current
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

5,73,146.84

75,335.35
(4,144.60)
(1,95,676.21)

3,474.99
(2,18,345.62)
(1,91,103.76)

42,686.99
1,05,469.48
(10,623.38)
(80,282.71)
2,31,842.95
39,283.70
16,005.69
(9,938.31)
3,07,751.56
6,42,195.97
(2,44,700.90)

11,92,449.84

58,290.51
(2,261.01)
(3,472.00)

(4,28,732.13)
(4,031.90)
(8,440.07)

41,298.37
88,890.66

(3,87,740.02)

5,46,252.25

(2,57,127.97)

(2,88,771.38)

94,575.68

(1,10,171.17)

(42,076.02)
(5,851.84)
(5,971.24)
22,264.61
(46,877.08)
(2,30,596.51)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

3,97,495.06

(2,77,473.60)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Investment Property
Payments for (Purchase)/Sale of Investments (Net)
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Fixed Deposits
Loan Given
Advance Given
Repayment of Advance Given

(12,681.72)

(3,36,355.00)
(13,29,703.34)
1,91,103.76
4,144.60
6,18,730.08

(4,54,500.00)

(1,00,557.58)
33,438.07

(2,05,755.00)
14,63,833.40
3,87,740.02
2,261.01
1,24,967.41
2,32,405.27

1,88,500.00

Net cash outflow from investing activities

(13,19,261.62)

21,26,832.60

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Loan/ Advance Taken
Loan/ Advance Paid
(Repayment)/ Acceptance of Security Deposit (Net)

(3,474.99)

(6,679.95)
(38,650.02)

4,859.99

(41,298.37)
18,393.36
(23,573.23)
(14,07,237.06)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

(43,944.97)

(14,53,715.30)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

(9,65,711.52)
10,33,421.45

3,95,643.71
6,37,777.75

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

67,709.93

10,33,421.45




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Balances with banks

- On Current Accounts 42,712.36 5,94,135.37

- On Bank Overdraft - (2,44,463.29)

- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of less than 3 months - -

- On Fixed Deposits pledged against Bank Overdraft - 6,61,719.93
Cheques on hand 22,723.57 12,054.93
Cash on hand 2,274.00 9,974.51
Balances as per statement of cash flows 67,709.93 10,33,421.45

Note :

(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as prescribed under Indian Accounting
Standard 7 (Ind AS 7) notified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ recasted wherever necessary.

As per our separate report of even date attached hereto.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.302113E

Wi v

Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Partner
Membership No : 069367

Place : Kolkata
Date : 3Jo0.0(-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Divna P

Anshuman Prakash
(Director)
DIN-00434909

L il

Sudhir Prakash
(Managing Director)
DIN-00434020

Lalita Kanta Samal
(Chief Financial Officer)
PAN-AKTPS1391M

A
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Ginni Lohariwala
(Company Secretary)
PAN-AJYPL5486C
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION
KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED bearing CIN - L67020WB1979PLC031867 is a Public Limited Company, listed in Calcutta Stock
Exchange, incorporated in India on February 5,1979 with the name Sreela Chem Industrial Investment Limited. Further on 21st
November 1988, the company amalgamated with Kanak Investments Limited, Semni Valley Investments Private Limited and
Kytharam Investments Private Lirnited and changed its name to Kanak Projects Limited as per the High Court Order. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 41, Chowringhee Road,Kanak Building, Kolkata 700071.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of renting of immovable properties. Its allied business activity also includes
investing, acquiring, holding or otherwise dealing in shares, stocks and other securities.

The financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022 was approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the company
on 30th June, 2022 and subject to adoption by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 significant Accounting Policies

a)

b)

c)

d)

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company
has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from 1st April, 2016 with restatement of previous year figures presented
in this financial statements. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors has been
considered in preparing these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Basis of consolidation

The Company consolidated entity over which the company has significant influence.The Consolidated Financial Statements
comprise the financial statements of the Company and profits of its Associates.

Associates are the entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control. Investment in Associates are
accounted for using the 'Equity Method of Accounting'. The investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition
date.The Company's investment in associates includes goodwill/capital reserve identified on acquisition.

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain items which are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained below:

(i) certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;

(ii) defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

e) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non - current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained their operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

f) Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
enviroment in which the Company operates ("functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees(Rs.), which is the functional currency of the Company.

2 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.
Effective April 1,2018,the Company has applied Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether,how much and when revenue is to be recognised.The Company has
adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative effect method.The impact of adoption of this Standard on the financial statements of
the Company is insignificant
a) Rental Income
Lease rentals are accounted for on accrual basis.
b) Interest Income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate.
Interest income is included under the head “Other Income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
c) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established i.e. in case of interim
dividend, on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors; whereas in case of final dividend, on the date of
approval by the shareholders.
d) All other income are accounted for on accrual basis.

3 Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

4 Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmant losses, if any.
Historical cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of asset, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any
directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measure reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

(a) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Freehold Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the written down method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives.
The useful life is taken as per prescribed useful life in Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The asset's residual
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or
loss within other gains/(losses).




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

5 Investment Property
Investment properties include those portions of land and buildings appurtenant thereto that are held for long-term rental
yields and/or for capital appreciation and properties under operating leases, that is held for long-term capital appreciation or
for a currently indeterminate use but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties like land are initially recugnised at cost and investment property like building is recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and azcumulated impairn:ent losses, if any. These are also subject to renovations or improvements
at regular intervals. The cost of major renovatic::s and improvements is capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced
components are recognised in profit or loss. The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor improvements is recognised in profit
or loss when incurred.

On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Freehold Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the written down method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The useful life is taken as per prescribed useful life in Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The asset's residual
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

6 Inventories
Securities held as stock-in-trade
a) Securities acquired with the intenticn of short-term holding and trading positions are considered as Inventories and shown
as current assets.
b) Inrespect of securities held as inventories, brokerage and stamp duty are written off as revenue expenditure.
c) The securities held as inver.icries under cutveiii assets are valued at Fair Value using Ind AS 109 - 'Financial Instruments'.

Building held as stock-in-trade .

a) Building acquired with the intention of shori-terin holding ,trading pasitions and to earn rental income is considered as
Inventories and shown as current assets.

b) The building held as inventories under current assets is valued at Cost.

7 Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

8 Leases
Effective from 1 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116, which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases
and other interpretations.
The Company at the inception cf a contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. Further such lease is classified
as either Financial Lease or Cper-ting Lease: .
Financial Lease - Agreements arc <iassified a: lNnancial Leases, if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased asset is transferred to the Lessee
Operating Lease - Agreements which are not classitied as finance leases are considered as operating lease.

a) When the Company is a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Payments received under operating leases are recognized as income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on a Systematic basis over the lease term.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

b) When the Company is a lessor

Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees where a lessee recognises a right-of-
use (“ROU") asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The nature of expenses related to those leases will change as Ind AS 116 replaces the operating lease
expense (i.e., rent) with depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.

9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a)

b)

d)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the passage of time is recognized as finance costs.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation as
at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net
of any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognized in the financial statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised
as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

10 Impairment of Assets

a)

b)

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment loss previously recognized is reversed such that the asset is
recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written down value which would have been reported if the
impairment loss had not been recognized.

Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “Other expenses” in the profit or loss. ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount.

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount. o .




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

11 Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognized in Equity or in OCI.

a)

b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCl and Equity are recognized in OCI and in Equity
respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

The amendment in Ind AS 12 regarding the Income Tax uncertainty over Income Tax treatments clarifies the recognition
and measurement requirements when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In assessing the uncertainty, an
entity shall consider whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment.This
notification is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. As per the Company’s assessment,
there are no material income tax uncertainties over income tax treatments. )

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws to the extent it is likely to
give future economic benefits in the form of availability to set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the

future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets

against deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

12 Earnings per Share

a)

b)

c)

Basic earnings per share are ccmputed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share =re computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic a=rnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
which could be issued on the conversion oi all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined as at the end of each period presented. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for
any share split and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by

the Board of Directors.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Baiance cheet caraprise cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance with banks on current
accounts and short term, highiy liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and which carry
insignificant risk of changes in value. '
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
and net of outstanding book overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

14 Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

15 Employee Benefits
a) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits are recognised as an
expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service is
rendered.

b) Defined contribution plans
The Company makes coniributions to defined cenefit schemes which are mainly administered through duly constitute
Provident Fund contributicins are in the nature of defined contribution scheme. Provident funds are deposited with the
Government and recognised as expense. '
Post retirement defined benefits i.e gratuity is funded with LICI and are determined through independent acturial
valuation.
The service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss on
account of remeasurements are recognised immediately through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur.

16 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial

liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

(A) Financial Assets

(i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
All the financial assets are recognised at Fair Value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets,
that are not measured at fair value through orofit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash and bank
balances and other financial instruments.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:
1) Atamortised cost,
2) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
3) At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

(a) Investment in Preference Shares at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

2) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective
interest rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premlum on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. -




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(b) Investment in Debentures at amortised cost

1)

2)

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. :

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective
interest rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method.

(c) Investment in Mutuci Funds at Fair Vaiue through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

The investments held in the liquid furds wnether being debt or equity instruments, generate cash flows that represent
payments of principal and interest. Howeva, the holder of the liquid fund at it's discretion has the option sell its
investments in order to optimise returns. Therefore, the cash flows paid by the fund to the unit holder comprise
gains/losses on the instruments held Ly the fund, in addition to interest and principal cash flows from those
instruments.

The business model objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling it's financial assets.
Therefore the liquid funds are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

(d) Investment in Equity investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except in case of investment in associates
which are carried at cost. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis.

All quoted equity instruments are measured at fair value which is determined based on Level-1 inputs that is quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets and last traded prices.

All unquoted equity instruments are measured at fair value by taking into account the financial statements of such
instruments to the extent available to the Company.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to profit or loss, even on sale
of investment.

However, the Compaiy may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

(iii) De- Recognition
The Company derecognises a-{inancial asset only'when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfers the financial asset and substantia‘ly ail the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

(B) Financial Liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Initial Recognition & Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortised
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities include security deposits ,trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, other financial instruments, etc.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial liabilities are classified through amortised cost.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

The security deposits are held for collecting the contractual cash flows (i.e. original amount of deposit), which is the
principal amount outstanding (the interest being nil), it meets the criteria for measurement at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

The difference between the fair value of the deposits and the transaction price on initial recognition of the deposit is
accounted for separately as "Pre-received income" shown under the head 'Other Financial Liabilities'. The accounting
treatment for these will depend upon the nature of the element included in the deposits. Had the entity not placed the
deposits with the lessor, the monthly rentals would have been higher. This indicates that the nature of the interest-free
element in these deposits represents a-pre-received income. Hence, this difference will be recognised as ‘Pre-received
Income’, which will be amortised to the statement of profit and loss over the life of the deposit on a straight line basis.

The deposits would subsequently be measured at amortised cost, which is computed using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) methpd. The entity should, over the period of the lease/contract, recognise and accrue its amortised cost of
deposits as finance cost calculated at the market rate of interest for such deposits. = .\ " ¢ N

.

g
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(C) Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(D) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Under Ind AS, fair valuation of financial
instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement” .

For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets
and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a
fair value measurement in both cases is the same to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or
to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions(i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or
owes the liability).

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

T TR

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

NOTE 2 : USE OF CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition would seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment and make certain assumptions in applying the
Company’s accounting policies and preparation of financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement.

i) Estimation of Defined benefit obligations
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each financial year end.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the
actuary considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

ii) Estimated fair value of unlisted securities
The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets is determined based on the networth of underlying companies.
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 4: Investment Property (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Freehold Land
Gross Carrying Amount of Property

Opening Gross Values 4,50,525.00 2,44,770.00
Additions During the Year 2,05,755.00
Disposals During the Year - -

Balance at the end of the Year 4,50,525.00 4,50,525.00

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance - -
Depreciation during the year - -
Closing Balance - -

Net Carrying Amount 4,50,525.00 4,50,525.00
Building

Gross Carrying Amount of Property

Opening Gross Values 6,63,747.70 6,63,747.70
Additions During the Year 3,36,355.00 -
Disposals During the Year - -
Balance at the end of the Year 10,00,102.70 6,63,747.70
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance 1,16,067.47 88,503.83
Depreciation during the year 33,133.54 27,563.64
Closing Balance 1,49,201.01 1,16,067.47
Net Carrying Amount 8,50,901.69 5,47,680.23

Total 13,01,426.69 9,98,205.23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 5: Non-Current Investments

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

1) |lnvestment in Equity Instruments
(A) Quoted Shares (Measured at FVTOCI)

Aditya Birla Capital Ltd. 371 399.38 371 442.60
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Ltd. 920 2,779.32 920 1,851.50
Blue Diamond Sec.Ltd. 23,800 238.00 23,800 238.00
Chennai Meenakshi Multispeciality Hospital 1,000 231.50 1,000 97.40
Digjam Limited 40 76.00 40 1.94
DLX Ltd. 9,77,500 56,108.50 9,77,500 56,108.50
Dunlop India Ltd. 100 1.00 100 1.00
El Forge 50 0.50 50 0.50
Gillandars Aribunates Co. Ltd. 24 15.65 24 9.88
GMMCO Limited 15 0.15 15 0.15
Grasim Industries Ltd. 265 4,409.59 265 3,843.95
Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. 25 86.33 25 78.17
Gujrat Heavy Chemicals Ltd. 500 1,737.75 500 1,147.50
Haileyburia T. E. Ltd. 7,195 1,295.10 7,195 1,295.10
Hariyana Petrochemicals Ltd. 500 5.00 500 5.00
Himatsingha Seide Ltd. 800 1,204.00 800 1,158.80
J.K. Cement Limited 49 1,191.34 49 1,419.66
Jalpac India Ltd. 200 3.00 30C 3.00
Kakatiya Textiles Ltd. ! 1,000 111.50 1,000 6.50
KCP Ltd. ! 250 289.63 250 209.38
KCP Sugar and Industries i 250 62.63 250 36.75
Kilkotagiri & Thirumalai Plant Ltd 4 0.04 4 0.04
Mahindra Gesco Developers Ltd. 2 0.02 2 0.02
Manjushree Plantations Ltd. 600 6.00 600 6.00
Mcleod Russel India 1,314 299.57 1,314 250.96
Methoni Tea Co. Ltd. 400 104.00 400 104.00
Midland Rubber & Produce Co. Ltd. 200 2.00 200 2.00
Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co. Ltd. 100 1.00 100 1.00
Peria Karamalai Tea & Produce Co. Ltd. 328 1,026.64 328 721.28
R.K.Commercial Ltd. 1,08,310 5,415.50 1,08,310 5,415.50
Saurashtra Chemical Ltd. 700 7.00 700 7.00
Sunflag Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 755 476.03 755 473.01
Unimers India Limited 75 4.50 75 4.25
United Nilgiri Tea Estates Co. Ltd. 450 1,521.23 450 1,341.46
Uniworth India Ltd. 350 3.50 350 3.50
Vikash WSP Ltd. 1,000 33.50 1,000 59.50
Total (A) 79,146.40 76,344.77

(B) Unquoted Shares '

(i) In Associate (Measured at Cozz):
Lao Jan Tea Co.Pvt. Ltd. £.000 8,000.00 £,000 8,000.00
Add: Accumulated Share cf Proiit/(Loss) 3,10,657.48 3,05,385.67
Add: Current Year Profit/(Loss) (27,681.39) 5,271.81
2,90,976.09 3,18,657.48
Purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd. - 21,750 2,42,500.00
Add: Accumulated Share of Profit/(Loss) - 14,235.92
Add: Accumulated Share of Other Comprehensive ) 74.46
Income

Add: Current Year Profit/(Loss) (42,042.97)

Add: Current Year Other Comprehensive Income - -
Carrying Value of Assets - 2,14,767.41
Less: sale of Associate - (2,14,767.41)
Add: Fair Value of Residual Shares - 3,26,543.82
- 3,26,543.82

(i) In Others (Measured at FVTOCI) : -

Purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd. 21,75,000 3,54,908.97 - -
Mangalmayee Vypar Pvt Ltd. 2,35,000 23,180.83 2,35,000 23,191.44
Ahinsha Properties Ltd. 19,670 5,35,015.75 19,670 5,06,893.33
Amrita Media Pvt. Ltd. 1,20,000 8,467.73 1,20,000 9,634.67
Metropolitan Stack Excharge Lid. 1,00,000 591.76 1,00,000 651.37
DataNet Ecommerce Services Lid. : 17,50,C00 3,58,536.05 17,50,000 3,50,000.00
Total {B) 15,71,677.18 15,35,572.11

A
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Am

2) |Investment in Preference Instruments
1.(Measured at Amortised Cost)
(A) In Associate:
0.1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 85,000 80,030.44 85,000 74,102.24
Laojan Tea Company Private Limited
(B) In Others: -
6% Non Cumulative Non- Convertible Redeemable 4,00,000 3,66,137.30 7,00,000 6,43,701.80
Preference Shares of DLX Limited.
12% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference 6 0.60 6 0.60
Shares of Farm Enterprises Limited
5% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible - - 60,000 2,79,683.84
Redeemable Preference Shares of Ahinsha Properties
Limited
5% Non Cumulative Non- Convertible Redeemable 1,50,000 1,08,649.77 1,50,000 1,07,671.67
Preference Shares of DataNet Ecommerce Services
Limited
5% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 85,000 61,218.69 85,000 60,667.58
Praks United Ventures Private Limited
8% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 2,50,000 2,50,000.00 2,50,000 2,50,000.00
Jhilik Promoters & Fincom Private Limited
2.(Measured at FVTOCI) - -
0.0001% Cumalative Compulsorily Convertible 45 14,850.00 45 14,850.00
Preference Shares of Planys Technologies Pvt Ltd.
Total (C) 8,80,886.81 14,30,677.73
3) |Investment in Mutual Funds ( Measured at FVTPL
Kotak Balanced Advantage Fund 20,69,732 2,98,206.91 15,00,000 1,97,670.00
ICICI Pru Small Cap Fund (G) - 2,83,361 1,03,341.86
Religare -Invesco PSU Equity Fund (G) - 2,37,643 57,248.09
Axis Small Cap Fund Reg (G) - 29,595 12,962.41
Invesco India Small Cap Fund Reg (G) - - 87,260 13,438.05
ICICI Pru - Business Cycle Fund Reg (G) - 19,99,900 2,10,989.45
ICICI Pru - Technology Fund (G) 59,281 96,384.79 59,281 64,687.30
DSP Floater Fund 14,70,893 1,53,964.21 - -
ICICI Dividend Yield Equity 63,968 17,540.06 - -
ICICI Pru Equity Savings Fund (G) 37,98,165 6,53,284.46 - -
ICICI Pru- Floating Interest Fund (G) 20,860 70,369.42 - -
ICICI Pru- Ultra Short Term Fund Reg (G) 8,60,247 1,92,869.09 - -
ICICI Pru Strategic Meta & Energy 39,60,113 4,86,792.98 - -
UTI Dividend Yield Plan (G) 15,010 15,889.82 - -
SBI - Savings Fund Reg (G) 20,27,374 6,83,076.98 - -
Franklin India ST Income Segregated 3(9.5% Yes Bank) 889 612.50 889 612.50
Franklin India ST Income Segregated 2(10.9% Vodafone) 747 656.33 - -
Axis Ultra Short Term Fund - - 13,52,397 1,58,150.62
Total (D) 26,69,647.57 8,19,100.29
4) |Investment in Debentures(Measured at Amortised Cost)
1% Unsecured Optionally Fonw.ert.ible Debentures of 4,00,000 4,14,032.75 4,00,000 3,83,504.21
DataNet Ecommerce Services Limited
Total (E) 4,14,032.75 3,83,594.21
5) |Investment in Bonds(Measured at FVTOCI) :
8.99% B.0.B Bonds 40 4,18,980.00 - -
Total(F) 4,18,980.00 -
| TOTAL ( A+B+C+D+E+F) 60,34,370.70 | 42,45,289.10 |




LS'TTE'G8'E LO'TS6'ST €9'8LY°LST vO'LYE'6LL &8 S}95SY |elduBul4 J3Y10 |BI0L
- 00'0€2 000€ZTT'L O_.// SYIUOW ZT Ueyl alow Ajnjew guiaey syisodaq paxid
S9'LPS 8L LTYTT'E0T . / 3|qeAIRI3Y SI3YI0 @ S9ako|duig O3 S3IUBAPY
SL'6ST'0C'C - £2°0v2'02 - spun4 [enInpy 1 saJeys jo aseyaind Jsuiede aoueapy
0€'986 Z9'LyL'ET sainjuagag pue spuog
85'0688T 15°99€°0C sysodaq paxi4
60 LLLOL - sueo?
- - - E 1PaNJIIIY 353IB3U|
DEINT)
LO'TZL'8T 0’ LTT'8T usodaq Ajunoag
poo3 paJapisuod ‘paindasun
. ...Ev.::u :
TZ0Z'Y2JeIN ISTE 38 Y

(spa4punp’sy ul junouwy)

51955V |BIDUBUIS JBYIO - S}ISSY |eldueUl] i 310N

"(596'96°ST SY "A'd) 8£6°9L vT SY 03 syunowe Ajed paje|as 0] puewap uo ajqeAedas ueot SulpueisinQ -:d10N

LY'ELY'ER'E

L8'TTT'ET0T

81'9SL'E9'Y

L8'TTT'ET'OT

SueoT |ejoL

v8°LE6'VRT

€9'GES86'T

L8'TTT'ET0T

v 006'V8'T

v£°6G58'8L'C

L8'TTT'ET'OT

paJdiedwl 11paJd - sa|geAiaday sueo (p)

ASiY Hpadd ul
aseaJou Juediusis aARY YaIym $3|geAladay sueoT ()
‘paindasupn - poos palapisuod sa|geAladsy sueo (q)
‘paindas - pood pa.apIsuod s3|geAIadaY sueo (e)
-iS13Y1Q 03 Sueo

paJiedw] }IpaJd - S3|qeAladay sueo (p)

sy 3paJd ul
asealoul uediudis aAey Yydiym Sa|geAiaday sueot (3)
‘painiasun - pood palapisuod s3|qeAlsday sueo (q)
‘painaas - poos palapIsSu0I S3|(RAI3I3Y Sueo (e)
-:s3llied paje|ay 031 sueol

ua.uun)

Jus4Ind-uoN

uauIn)

uasind-uon

TZOT'Y2e\ ISTE 1B SY

ZZOT'YPIBIN ISTE 38 SV

SYVYINJILdYd

(spaipuny sy ui Junowy)

SUBOT - S13SSY |BlUBULS 19 JION

TT0T ‘Ydde 1S|LE PIPU JedL 3y} o) pue Je Se SJUIWIJE)S [elourUl] PIJepPIosuc) Ay 0} SIARON

@3LINIT S193r04d MVNW




«ANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 8: Other Non-Current Assets

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Capital Advances

6,44,587.72

1,90,087.72

Total of Other Non-Current Assets

6,44,587.72

1,90,087.72

Note 9: Inventories

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Equity Shares

3,40,694.36

4,46,163.84

Total Inventories

3,40,694.36

4,46,163.84

Note 10: Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 3,29,676.44 3,19,053.06
(c ) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -

(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired 27,042.78 27,042.78
Less: Allowance for Credit Impaired 27,042.78 27,042.78
Total Trade Receivables 3,29,676.44 3,19,053.06

Ref=r Note - 40(i) forTrade Receivable Ageing Schecule

Note 11: Financial Assets - Cash and Casn Equiva_iegité _

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Balance with Schedule banks
- On current accounts
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of less than 3 months
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than
12 months
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity more than 12 months
Less:
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than

12 months transferred to Bank Balance(Refer Note-12)
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity more than 12 months transferred to

42,712.36

10,59,288.71
7,11,230.00

(10,59,288.71)

5,94,135.37

24,75,936.13
230.00

(24,75,936.13)

(7,11,230.00) (230.00)

Other Financial Asset(Refer Note-7)
’ 42,712.36 5,94,135.37
Cheque on hand 22,723.57 12,054.93
Cash on hand 2,274.00 9,974.51
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 67,709.93 6,16,164.81

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the en

prior periods.

_d"blf"fﬁé reporting period and




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 12: Financial Assets - Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12
months *

10,59,288.71

30,50,968.72

Total

10,59,288.71

30,50,968.72

- Fixed Deposits under lien/pledge
- Fixed Deposits not under lien/pledge

17,70,518.71

6,61,719.93
23,89,248.79

Total

17,70,518.71

30,50,968.72

Note 13: Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net)

Advance Income Tax & TDS (Net of Provision)

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

1,04,181.62

(19,775.71)

Total of Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net)

1,04,181.62

(19,775.71)

Note 14: Other Current assets

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Prepaid Expenses 3,978.26 3,785.72
Advance to Vendors 4,066.79 43,543.03
Total of other non-current assets 47,328.75

8,045.05




- KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as ai and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 15: Equity share capital

{a) Reconciliation of shares oustanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting period :

{Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Authorised Shares
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares
Equity Shares of T 10/- each fully paid up

Total

50,00,000 5,00,000.00 50,00,000 5,00,000.00
5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
44,52,400 4,45,240.00 44,52,400 4,45,240.00
4,45,240.00 4,45,240.00

At the beginning of the year 44,52,400 4,45,240.00 44,52,400 4,45,240.00
Issued during the year - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 44,52,400 4,45,240.00 44,52,400 4,45,240.00

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares :
The company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The holders of Equity Shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of Interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets

(c)

of the company after payment of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

Disclosures of Shareholdings by Promoters

Shares Held by Promoters at the end cf the year:

Mr. Anshuman Prakash 30,27,580 91.37% -
Mr. Nikhil Prakash 15,370 0.46% -
Ms. Poonam Prakash 53,350 1.61% -
Ms. Radhika Prakash 2,15,850 6.51% -
Mr. Sudhir Prakash 1,350 0.04% -
Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Private Limited 100 0.003% -

TOTAL 33,13,600 100.00% -

Mr. Anshuman Prakash 30,27,580 91.37% -
Mr. Nikhil Prakash 15,370 0.46% -
Ms. Poonam Prakash 53,350 1.61% -
Ms. Radhika Prakash 2,15,850 6.51% -
Mr. Sudhir Prakash 1.350 0.04% -
Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Private Limited 100 0.003% -

TOTAL 33,13,600 100.00% -




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
" Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 15: Equity share capital

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :

Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- Each ' I
Mr. Anshuman Prakash * . ) 30,27,580 68.00% 30,27,580 68.00%
Anand Vihar Housing Pvt. Ltd. i 8,96,610 20.14% 8,96,610 20.14%

* Includes 29,70,800 shares held as trustee of Anand Prakash Family Trust.

(e) No shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of Shares or divestment as at the
Balance Sheet date.

(f) For the period of five years immediately preceeding the date as at the Balance Sheet is prepared :
(i) No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being recived in cash.
(i) No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
(ii) No Shares has been brought back by the Company.




_ KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 16: Other Equity

GENERAL RESERVE

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

At the beginning and at the end of the year:

35,59,863.17

35,59,863.17

Closing balance

35,59,863.17

35,59,863.17

RETAINED EARNINGS

Opening balance

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

67,33,122.31

58,17,536.93

Add : Net profit/(loss) for the period 4,52,431.64 8,55,572.36
Add : Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (net of Taxes) (970.39) (294.03)
Add: Transfer from FVTOCI Reserve 32,500.00
Add: Adjustment on Sale of Investment in Associate 27,807.05
Closing balance 71,84,583.56 67,33,122.31

FVTOCI RESERVE

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Opening balance 2,91,569.67 1,22,479.15
Net Gain/(Loss) on FVTOCI Investments 66,925.15 2,01,664.98
Less:Transfer to Retained Earning on Sale of Unquoted Equity Investment (32,500.00)
Less: Adjustment on Sale of Investment in Associate (74.46)
Closing balance 3,58,494.81 2,91,569.67
TOTAL OF OTHER EQUITY 1,11,02,941.54 1,05,84,555.14

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

General Reserve

General Reserve is created and will be utilised in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent accumulated profits/(losses) earned by the Company and remaining undistributed as on date.

FVTOCI Equity Investments

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments through other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve. The Company
transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

.

/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 17: Non Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Secured

Vehicle Term Loan from Bank* 18,393.36 24,567.51
Less: Current Maturity of Term Loan (6,679.95) (6,174.15)

Total Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 11,713.41 18,393.36

*Secured by hypothecation of vehicles financed

Repayment Schedule of Vehicle Loan

Patriculars 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025

Loan Amount Due to be Repaid 6,679.95 7,227.18 4,486.22

Note 18: Financial Liabilities - Other financial liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Security Deposits from tenants

1,92,839.98

1,73,240.96

Total Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

1,92,839.98

1,73,240.96

Note 19: Deferred Tax (Net)

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Difference between Accounting base and Tax base of Assets and Liabilities 51,814.54 (7,019.34)
Add : Deferred tax accounted for the year (23,013.27) 58,833.88
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (Net) 28,801.27 51,814.54

NOTE 19(A) : DEFERRED TAX RECONCILIATION

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Fair Valuation of Other Asset and Liability 1,58,440.18 1,20,896.91
Total 1,58,440.18 1,20,896.91
Deferred Tax Assets: -
Fair Valuation of Other Asset and Liability 23,786.92 39,028.40
Property Plant and Equipment 13,124.54 15,735.27
Emplyee Benefits - Gratuity 3,829.45 2,655.04
Provision for Expenses 88,898.00 11,663.67
Total 1,29,638.90 69,082.37
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (Net) 28,801.27 51,814.54

NOTE 19(B) : RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE ON THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Profit / (loss) before Tax 5,73,146.84 11,92,449.84
Applicable Tax Rate 0.25 0.25
Tax using the Company's Tax Rale 1,44,245.60 3,00,115.78
Tax Effect of:
Exempt Income, net of disaliowances {77,003.41) (60,439.66)
Standard deduction allowable on Income from House Property -
Income chargeable under different rates (24,993.26) (36,538.86)
Permanent Differences 13,583.62 27,413.60
Other Temporary Differences (28,722.71) - 13,919.68
Other Non Deductible Expenses 83,750.95 |- ~55,635.81
Change in Tax Rates (17,740.98)[ : . -
Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 93,033.80 /] 3,00,106.36

v
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 20: Other Non-Current liabilities

sy
et
S
e
S

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Pre- received rent on account of fair valuation of security deposit 1,04,188.57 1,22,137.77
Advance against Property 5,019.97 43,669.99
Total of Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,09,208.54 1,65,807.76

Note 21: Financial liabilities - Borrowings

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Loans repayable on demand
Secured

Working Capital Loan from Axis Bank

Secured against the pledge/lien of Fixed deposit of the said bank** - 2,44,463.29
Current Maturity on Long term Borrowings- Vehicle Loan 6,679.95 6,174.15
Total Current Borrowings 6,679.95 2,50,637.44

** Secured against Fixed Deposit taken from Axis Bank Kolkata (WB).The period of renewal is 12 months and the effective return is

7.50 % p.a. (Refer Note 12 - Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents)

Note 22: Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Trade payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 9,080.43
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 49,355.61 42,430.35
Total Trade Payables 58,436.04 42,430.35

Refer Note - 47 for Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Disclosure of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :

f/liaP:napal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting 9,080.43 NIL
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the NIL NIL
accounting year.

(iii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of NIL NIL
‘|the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment. NIL NIL
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting NIL NIL
year.

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section NIL NIL
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 23: Other Financial liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Payable to Employees 4,632.50 3,875.25
Security Deposits from tenants 3,292.50 3,292.50
Other Advances 8,448.11 12,171.67
Liability for Capital Goods - 6,972.00
Total Other Financial Liabilities 16,373.11 26,311.42

Note 24: Other Current liabilities

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Pre- received rent on account of fair valuation of security deposit 18,811.62 19,220.96
Statutory Dues 16,494.94 15,584.45
Interest Accrued and not due on Borrowings 101.56 135.65
Total Other Current Liabilities 35,408.13 34,941.07

Note 25: Provisions

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Employee Benefit- Gratuity 15,215.54 10,549.26
Provision for Rates & Taxes 3,53,218.40 46,343.24
Total Provisions 3,68,433.94 56,892.50




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 26: Revenue from Operations

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Rental Income 6,08,228.86 5,72,805.21
Sale of Properties - 1,89,114.70
Sale of Shares 3,50,445.06 9,69,664.76
Sale of Billets 6,87,509.31 10,02,695.21
Other Operating Revenue:

-License Fees Received 8,731.50 7,333.50
Total Revenue from Operations 16,54,914.73 27,41,613.38

* Includes Rental Income on account of Fair Valuation of Security Deposit amounting to ¥ 19,297/- (P.Y. ¥ 30,095/-)

Note 27: Other Income

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Interest
- On Loans 66,137.77 1,73,781.31
- On Fixed Deposits 86,624.40 2,12,552.41
- On Debentures 37,989.59 986.30
- On Others 352.00 420.00
- On account of Fair Valuation of Investments in Preference

Shares as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. 47,689.49 96,199.56
- On accc_)unt of Fair Valuat‘loln of Investments in Debentures as 30,438.54 7.976.44
per Effective Interest Rate {EiR) Method.
Dividend Income 4,144.60 2,261.01
Profit on Redemption of Prefzrence Shares 2,519.59 21,568.01
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 1,40,951.98 2,46,769.72
Profit on Sale of Motor Car - 8,440.07
Profit on Future and Option 7,582.16 20,036.52
Share of Profit from Partnership Firm - 4,031.90
Profit on Sale of Securites(Equity Shares) 45,805.94 6,291.39
Compensation Towards Lease Termination - 1,43,554.24
Miscellaneous Income 57,570.24 70,118.42
Fair Value Gain on Financial Instruments 1,91,674.78 1,44,378.89
Total Other Income 7,19,481.07 11,59,366.19
Note 28: Purchases of 5t (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

1,36,500.68 12,59,087.71
Purchase of Billets 6,43,534.83 9,78,092.09
Total Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 7,80,035.50 22,37,179.80

Note 29: Changes in Inventories of Finished Gcods, Work-in-Progress

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Inventories at the Beginning of the year

Securites 4,46,163.85 56,370.63
Properties - 1,32,665.24
Inventories at the End of the year

Securites 3,40,694.36 4,46,163.84
Properties - -
Changes in Inventories 1,05,469.48 (2,57,127.97)

Note 30: Employee Benefit Expense

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

69,022.63

61,886.06

4,989.69F - | .

Total Employee Benefit Expense

Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 6,319.30 :

Director Remuneration 94,300.00 85,500.00, o

Staff Welfare Expenses 24,952.50 6,52‘,?:,.0'9'
1,94,594.43

1,58,808.84 /g




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
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Note 31: Finance Cost

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Interest on Working Capital Loan 600.9

Interest on Vehicle Loan 1,686.32 992.56
Finance Cost on account of Fair Valuation of Security Deposit 15,677.74 24,569.98
Interest on Rates and Taxes _. 1,188.38 1,593.14
Total Finance Cost 19,152.73 67,461.49
Note 32: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Depreciation on
- Property, plant and equipment 42,201.81 30,726.87
- Investment property 33,133.54 27,563.64
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 75,335.35 58,290.51

Note 33: Other Expenses

Loss on Fair Valuation of Investment in Preference Share
Loss on Fair Valuation of Investment in Debentures
Rent,Rates & Taxes

Insurance

Repairs to Building

Repairs to Plant & Machinery

Repairs to Others

Bad Debts

Office Expenses

Motor Car Running & Maintenance Expenses
Donations & Charity(including Corporate Social Responsibility) [Refer
Note 42 ]

Brokerage & Commission

Advertisement & Publicity

Security Services

Printing & Stationery

Electrical Charges

Communication Expenses

Legal & Professional Fees

Auditor's Remuneration :

- As Statutory Audit Fees

- As Tax Audit Fees

Travelling and Conveyance

Miscellaneous Expenses

Sundry Balances Written off

Director Sitting Fees

Share Speculation Loss

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

3,12,804.02
2,496.16
1,61,939.49
3,785.12
4,741.52
6,760.28
10,690.02

25,000.00

6,105.45
12,322.04
958.95
13,786.33
1,880.23
47,293.12
3,500.00
300.00
3,155.80
4,335.55
3,940.21
220.00
647.18

1,23,097.99
24,382.23
57,438.21
1,598.98
67,273.43
4,077.28
4,132.06
3,472.00
3,618.12
6,475.17

46,000.00

5,130.00
9,745.22
10,557.83
986.32
7,090.20
1,866.79
30,415.53
3,500.00
500.00
3,400.30
3,571.74
25,497.66

Total Other Expenses

6,26,661.47

4,43,827.05

q
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34 Related Party Disclosure:
Relate Party Disclosure in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 24 :

s s T T

Key Management Personnel 1 Sudhir Prakash, Managing Director
2 Anshuman Prakash, Director
3 Neelima Jain, Director
4 Nikhil Prakash, Director
5 Sidhant Prakash, Director
6 Nitin Kandoi, Independent Director
7 Princey Kandoi, Independent Director
8 Lalita Kanta Samal, Chief Financial Officer
9 Ginni Lohariwala, Company Secretary
Enterprises Owned or Significantly Influenced by 10 DLX Ltd
Key Managerial Personnel , or their Relatives 11 Amrita Media Pvt. Ltd
12 Megapix Strips & Tubes Pvt. Ltd.
13 Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Pvt. Ltd
14 Barsana Farms Pvt Ltd
15 Arihant Solvex Pvt. Ltd
16 Purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd
Associate Company 17 Lacjan Tea Company Private Ltd.

i

17,772.03

1|Purbanchal Concast Pvt. Ltd Loan Given -
Loan Repaid E 2,50,000.00
Interest 40,247.54 1,35,278.01
Interest receivable - 70,777.29
Closing Balance of Loan 10,13,221.87 10,13,221.87
License Fees Received 900.00 500.00
Sale of Billets 6,87,509.31 10,02,695.21
2 |DLX Ltd Loan Given - 1,55,000.00
Loan Repaid - 2,36,325.27
Interest 5,834.47 12,081.34
Closing Balance of Loan 1,18,122.91 1,09,271.89
Purchase of Preference Shares - 4,00,000.00
Redemption of Preference Shares 3,00,000.00
Advance Given 31,135.93 11,099.40
Refund Of Advance 27,235.33 15,000.00
3 |Arihant Solvex Pvt. Ltd Interest 12,743.43 6,380.39
Loan Given 60,000.00 37,500.00
Closing Balance of Loan 1,60,732.83 89,263.74
4 |Amrita Media Pvt. Ltd Reimbursement Receivable 5,023.24 3,373.24
5 |Barsana Farms Pvt Ltd License Fees Received 240.00 240.00
6 |Megapix Strips & Tubes Pvt. Ltd. Loan Outstanding 1,58,554.14 1,43,911.18
Interest - 14,642.96
7 |Ginni Lohariwala Salary 1,800.00 750.00
Nitin Kandoi Director Sitting Fees 110 -
9 |Princey Kandoi Director Sitting Fees 110 -
10 |Anshuman Prakash Directors Remuneration 30,900.00 28,500.00
11 |Nikhil Prakash Directors Remuneration 32,500.00 28,500.00
12 |Sidhant Prakash Directors Remuneration 30,900.00 28,500.00
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS :-

35 Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The financial instruments are
catagorized into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2022 :

in Rs.Hundreds)

Assets measured at fair value:

Investments at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI) 5

Investments in Quoted equity shares 79,146.40 79,146.40 -

Investments in Unguoted equity shares 12,88,701.10 - - 12,88,701.10

Investments in Bonds 4,18,980.00 - 4,18,980.00 -

Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 14,850.00 - - 14,850.00

Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 5

Investments in Mutual Funds 14,850.00 - 14,850.00 -

Investments at Amortised Cost 5

Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 8,66,036.81 - - 8,66,036.81

Investments in Debentures 5 4,14,032.75 - - 4,14,032.75
TOTAL 30,96,597.06 79,146.40 4,33,830.00 25,83,620.66

Liabilities measured at fair value at amortised 18

Interest-free Security Deposit 1,96,132.48 - - 1,96,132.48
TOTAL 1,96,132.48 - - 1,96,132.48

Quantitative disclosures fair valu

t a d Ilahllltles asat 31st March, 2021 :

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Assets measured at fair value:
Investments at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI 5
Investments in Quoted equity shares 76,344.77 76,344.77 - -
Investments in Unquoted equity shares 12,24,914.62 - - 12,24,914.62
Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 14,850.00 - - 14,850.00
Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 5
Investments in Mutual Funds 8,19,100.29 - 8,19,100.29 -
Investments at Amortised Cost
Investments in Unquoted Preference Shares 14,15,827.73 14,15,827.73
Investments in Debentures 5 3,83,594.21 3,83,594.21
Investments in Bonds - - -
TOTAL 39,34,631.61 76,344.77 8,19,100.29 30,39,186.65
Liabilities measured at fair value at amortised
Interest-free Security Deposit 18 1,76,533.46 - - 1,76,533.46
TOTAL 1,76,533.46 - - 1,76,533.46

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended 31st March, 2022 or 31st March, 2021.
36 Earning Per Equity Share { Ind AS 33

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

4,80,113.03

8,92,343.48

(a) Net Profit after tax available for Equity Shareholders
(b) Weighted average no. of equity shares of * 10/- each outstanding during the year

44,52,400
(c) Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (a)/(b) 10.78 20.04

44,52,400
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37 POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (IND AS-19)
Defined Benefit Plans As Per Acturial Valuation
Gratuity ( funded by the Company )
The scheme is funded and the fund is lying with LICI. The company has provided with the balance of the fund as at 01.04.2021
and 31.03.2022 and the information relating to the contribution made and the benefits paid out and interest earned during the
period from 01.04.2021 to 31.03.2022
Determination of acturial assumption depend on various factors such as the company's internal commercial and business plan,
various industry factors, applicable economics factors, internal HR related policies (including and changes thereto), regulatory
factors, etc .
Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may very
overtime. Thus, the company is exposed to various risk in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate Risk : The plan exposes the company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rate will result in an
increase in ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown
in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the company is not able to meet the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-
availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of liquid asset not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of
plan participants in future. Derivation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plans's liability.

Demographic Risk : The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of liability. The company is
exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordence with the requirements of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. There is a
risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts.

SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITY (BALANCE SHEET POSITION) (Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Present value of obligation 35,121.13 28,787.02
Fair Value of Plan Asset 19,905.59 18,237.76
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - -
Effects of Asset Ceiling - -
Net Asset / (Liability) (15,215.54) (10,549.26)

WINDUP LIABILITY / DISCONTINUANCE LIABILITY
E
:

Discontinuance Liability

35,132.28

28,842.14

Present Value of Obligation

35,121.13

28,787.02

Ratio ( Present Value of Obligation / Discontinuance Liability )

1.00

1.00

(i) Details of funded post retirement are as follows:

a. Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss

Current service Cost

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

2,2

2,035.95

Loan / (Gain) on settlement

Net Interest Cost

659.33

560.07

Benefit Cost (Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss)

2,872.06

2,596.02




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

b. Other Comprehensive Income

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds}

Acturial gain/Loss on Obligation due to :

- change in demographic assumpptions - -

- change in financial asumptions 66.06 65.66
- experience variencre ( i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions ) 2,256.13 1,080.84
- others -

Return/loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (201.08) (235.59)
Components Of defined Benefit Cost Recognised In Other Compresive Income 2,121.11 910.91

c. Ch inP t Value of Defined benefit obligation:

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Present Value of DBO at beginning of period 28,787.02 26,561.73
Current Service cost 2,212.73 2,035.85
Interest Cost 1,799.19 1,673.39
Curtailment Cost/(credit) - -
Settlement cost/(credit) - -
Employee contribution - -
Past Service Cost - -
Acquisitions - -
Re-measurement (or Actuarial (gains)/Losses) Arising from
-change in demographic assumption - -
-change in financial assumptions 66.06 65.66
-experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 2,256.13 1,080.84
-others . -
Benefits paid - (2,630.55)
Present Value of DBO at end of period 35,121.13 28,787.02

Fair Value of Pl

Assets

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Plan assets at beginning of period 18,237.76 17,671.70
Investment Income 1,139.86 1,113.32
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding amount recognised in Net Interest Expenses 201.08 235.59
Actual Company Contributions 326.89 1,847.70
Fund Transferred -

Employee contributions -

Benefits paid - (2,630.55)
Plan assets at end of period 19,905.59 18,237.76

e. Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet

Funded Status

Present value of Defined Benefit Obliagtion 35,121.13 28,787.02
Fair Value of plan assets 19,905.59 18,237.76
Funded Status [surplus/Deficit] (15,215.54) (10,549.26)
Effect of balancesheet asset limit - -

Unrecognised past service cost - -

Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet (10,549.26)
Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet at the beginning of period (10,549.26) (8,890.03)
Expenses recognised in Income Statement 2,872.06 2,596.02
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2,121.11 910.91
Employer Contribution 326.89 1,847.70
Net Acquisition / Business contributions -

Net asset/(libility) recognised i:: baiance sheet st ite end of period (15,215.54)

AN

(10,549.26)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

f. Major Categories of plan Assets as % of Total Plan Assets

R W&&»&«g« e
.

Fund Managed by Insurer

100%

100%

TOTAL

100%

100%

g. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

m 5

1years 17,409.41 10,591.62
Between 2 to 5 yezrs 8,300.86 10,192.65
Between 6 to 10 years 9,014.55 8,805.74
More Than 10 Years 11,995.93 11,194.10
The avearage duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of
. 4 years 5 years
balancesheet date (in years)

h. Sensitivity Analysis

b

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 33,862.85| 36,518.99 27,538.84 30,179.02
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity -3.58% 3.98% -4.340% 4.840%
Salary Growth(-/+1%) 36,554.60| 33,808.37 30,216.41 27,482.88
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 4.08% -3.74% 4.970% -4.530%
Attrition Rate (-/+ 50%) 35,140.93[ 35,098.98 28,811.48 28,759.53
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 0.06% -0.06% 0.080% -0.100%
Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 35,125.79] 35,116.33 28,792.44 28,781.43
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 0.01% -0.01% 0.020% -0.020%

(ii) Details of unfunded post retirement defined benefit obligation are as follows:

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

ion of Defined Benefit Obligation (Current / Non- currrent) at the end of the period

Current define benefit obligation 17,409.41 10,591.62
Non-current define benefit obligation 17,711.72 18,195.40
Total defined benefit obligation 35,121.13 28,787.02
b. Best Estimate Of Contribution During Next Year 17,443.85 | 12,573.95




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- ACCOUNTING, CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

38 Financial Instruments by category
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)
()

2
(a)
(b)
(c)

Financial Assets
Investments *
Trade and other Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balances other than Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Total

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total

10
11
12

17 &21
22
18&23

tin

Rs.Hundreds)
L

57,51,394.61 26,69,647.57 17,93,677.49 12,80,069.56 57,43,394.62
3,29,676.44 - - 3,29,676.44 3,29,676.44
67,709.93 b 67,709.93 67,709.93
10,59,288.71 - 10,59,288.71 10,59,288.71
14,76,978.05 14,76,978.05 14,76,978.05
8,86,825.66 - - 8,86,825.66 8,86,825.66
95,71,873.40 | 26,69,647.57 17,93,677.49 51,00,548.35 95,63,873.41
18,393.36 - - 18,393.36 18,393.36
49,355.61 - - 49,355.61 49,355.61

2,09,213.09

2,09,213.09

2,09,213.09

2,76,962.05

2,76,962.05

2,76,962.05

* Excludes investments measured at cost .

(Amount in

Hundreds)

1
(a
(b)
(c)
(d
(e)
(f)

2
(a)
(b)
(c

Financial Assets
Investments *
Trade and other Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balances other than Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets

Total

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total

10

11
12

17 &21
22
18 & 23

39,34,631.61
3,19,053.06

6,16,164.81
30,50,968.72

14,15,416.41

8,19,100.29

13,08,105.39

17,99,421.94
3,19,053.06

6,16,164.81
30,50,968.72

14,15,416.41

39,26,631.61

3,19,050.36
6,16,164.81
30,50,968.72

14,15,416.41

3,89,551.57 - - 3,89,551.57 3,89,551.57
97,25,786.18 8,19,100.29 13,08,109.39 75,90,576.51 97,17,783.48
2,69,030.80 - 2,69,030.80 2,69,030.80
42,430.35 - - 42,430.35 42,430.35
1,99,552.38 - - 1,99,552.38 1,99,552.38

5,11,013.53

5,11,013.53

5,11,013.53

* Excludes investments measured at cost .

39 Disclosure in respect of Contingent Liability and Capital Commitment:

(a) Contingent Liability(to the extent not provided for)

i) Capital Commitment (Net of Advance paid )

20,500

(b) Income Tax
i) Assessment Year 2013-2014 , the company has filed an appeal with C.1.T. (Appeal) against a demand of %15,849.20 (Net of Paid under protest of £

5,000.00 /-)

ii) Assessment Year 2017-2018 , the company has filed an appeal with C.I.T. (Appeal) against an Income Tax Order of 233,744.18 (Net of Paid under

protest of X 8,436.05 /-)

(c) Municipal Tax

The Company has preferred an appeal before the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court against the Order of Kolkata Municipal Corporation in respect of
retrospective revision of Annual Valuation of the Property and raised a demand of %40,43,005.61/- against which the Company has paid %9,12,159.36/-
. However,the said proceeding are still pending before the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court. The Company expects no material liability towards the same.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

40 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities includes Borrowings, Trade payable and Other financial liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include Securities,
Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents and Other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The senior management
provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managir:g each of these risks, which are summarized below :

(a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in interest rates.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Any changes in the interest rates environment may impact future cost of borrowings. The interest rate risk is
managed by the Company by monitoring monthly cash flows which is reviewed by management to prevent loss of interest.

The following table demonstrates the borrowings of the Company:

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Vehicle Loan o 18,393.36 24,567.51
- 2,44,463.29

Working Capital Loan
18,393.36 2,69,030.80

Total

Sensitivity Analysis :
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that portion of borrowings
affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit before tax and equity before tax is affected, as
follows:

(Am

t in Rs.Hundreds)

As at +0.5% (870.99) (870.99)
31st March, 2022 -0.5% 870.99 870.99.
As at +0.5% (1,365.00) (1,365.00)
31st March, 2021 -0.5% 1,365.00 1,365.00

(ii) Price risk
The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted, mutual fund and bonds and
classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The Company is not
expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.

The table below sets forth the fair value of quoted investments in securities of listed companies and mutual funds :
(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

Investments in Quted Equity Shares (at FVTOCI) 79,146.40 76,344.77
Investments in Mutual Funds (at FVTPL) 26,69,647.57 8,19,100.29
Investments in Bonds (at FVTOCI) 4,18,980.00 -

TOTAL 31,67,773.96 8,95,444.56
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE 48: Information about Operating Segment for the Current Year 2021-22 (IND AS - 108)

Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment including
inter segment transfers. Inter segment transfers are accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to

between the segments.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a
whole and are not allocable to segments on direct and/or on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as
“Unallocable”.

(Amount in Rs.Hundreds)

REVENUE
Revenue
Other Income

_Rental Income

Total (X

6,16,960.36
57,570.24

6,87,509.31

3,50,445.06
6,61,910.83

16,54,914.73
7,19,481.07

Total Revenue

6,74,530.60

6,87,509.31

10,12,355.89

23,74,395.80

Deferred Tax
Income Tax for Earlier Year

RESULTS
Segment Result 31,910.62 (24,590.17) 5,84,979.11 5,92,299.56
Finance Cost 19,152.73
Profit Before Tax 5,73,146.84
Current Tax 1,39,497.50

(28,722.71)
(17,740.98)

Profit After Tax

4,80,113.03

Other Information

Segment Assets

13,62,582.57

3,40,704.55

1,03,89,812.63

1,20,93,099.75

Total Asset

1,20,93,099.75

Segment Liabilities 7,19,259.14 - 1,08,635.21 8,27,894.35
Total Liabilities 8,27,894.35
Information about Operating Segment for the Previous Year 2020-21:

REVENUE

(Amount in

Rs.Hundreds)

ated

Total (X

Revenue 5,80,138.71 | 10,02,695.21 11,58,779.46 27,41,613.38
Other Income 2,13,672.66 - 9,45,693.52 11,59,366.18
Total Revenue 7,93,811.37 | 10,02,695.21 21,04,472.99 39,00,979.56

RESULTS

§_g§ment Result

5,65,980.52

(24,137.66)

7,18,068.48

12,59,911.34

Finance Cost

67,461.49

Profit Before Tax

11,92,449.85

Current Tax

2,92,473.50

Deferred Tax 7,632.87
Income Tax for Earlier Year -
Profit After Tax 8,92,343.48

Other Information

Segment Assets

10,71,515.23

3,54,209.99

1,01,33,657.52

1,15,59,382.73

Total Asset

1,15,59,382.73

Segment Liabilities

4,49,866.25

3,90,378.84

8,40,245.09

Total Liabilities

8,40,245.09
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules.

The Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies
Act,2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the period ending 31st March, 2022 and also for the
period ending 31st March, 2021.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or any other entity.

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, for the current and
previous year.

The Company has complied with number of layers as prescribed under clause-87 of section 2 of the Companies
Act,2013 read with Companies Rule,2017.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year and previous year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current year and previous
year .

Utilisation Of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

A) The Company has not advanced, loaned or invested funds(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities(Intermediaries) with the
understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall-

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

ii) provide any guarantee or security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

So, required disclosure with respect to the above is not applicable.

B)The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities(Funding Party)
with the understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall-

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

ii) provide any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

So, required disclosure with respect to the above is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19-The Company has taken into account all
the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited to its
assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption, the recoverability of property plant and equipment,
receivables, intangible assets, cash and cash equivalent and investments. The Company has carried out this
assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of these
financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and
expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements owing to the nature and duration of
COVID-19.

Previous year/period figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to make them

£

comparable with those of current year.
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